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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Principal place of business

The Bank is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 45 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segment is set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 10.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend (2018: Nil)
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out in Note 34 to
the financial statements.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$100,000 (2018: Nil).

Other properties and equipment

Details of the movements in the Group’s other properties and equipment
are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements. There were no movements during the year.
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Capital instruments

During the year, the Bank issued and redeemed subordinated capital
securities which qualified as additional Tier 1 capital of the Bank
totalling US$660,000,000 and US$260,000,000 respectively. Details of
the Bank’s subordinated debts issued and additional equity instruments
are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

The Bank, redeemed on 4 February 2020 and re-issued on 27 February
2020, RMBI1,000,000,000 undated non-cumulative subordinated

1,000,000,000 7T 7k 45 %Y Ik & 5 1% (8 ZH 9 — additional Tier 1 capital securities.
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AEEARBEAFEEHWIELZEE The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as

HUWT follows:

HEFE CO—RLENAZ+F/VHEME) Mr TIAN Huiyu (resigned on 28 June 2019)

o 1 (ZO—hWHE+AT+TUHZESE Mr ZHU Qi * (appointed as Chairman on 14
FER) October 2019)

B (ZO—hENAZF/NHREBME) Mr LI Hao (retired on 28 June 2019)

BLCRE!' (ZO—NLWENLAANHZEAEE Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen ! (appointed as Vice-Chairman on 6
FER) September 2019)

R (ZOZOF—H—HBHZF AT Dr HONG Bo * (appointed as Chief Executive
B HE) Officer on 1 January 2020)

HEY (ZOZOFE— A ANHBMT) Dr XU Shiging # (resigned on 6 January 2020)

21897 Mr LIU Jun *

gF 3 Mr ZHANG Cheng

PR L Mr PENG Jiawen

KILE Mr ZHU Jiangtao

JE S HE Mr CHOW Kwong Fai Edward '

20 R ! Mr LIU Erh Fei !

20k ! Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry '

ES=F Mr WANG Qixin '

fHATE SR Executive Director

" B IE T EE 1 Independent Non-executive Director

B AEIES Directors of subsidiaries
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The names of directors who have served on the boards of the Bank’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of the financial

statements? are as follows:

CHEN Yiwen, CHEN Zhaonan, CHEUNG Chung Keung, CMB Wing
Lung (Trustee) Limited, CHOI Heung Kwan Agnes*, CHOY Chung
Foo, DEERIGHT LIMITED, EAGLEARN LIMITED, FENG Xuefeng,
GAO Hong, GAO Ting, GUAN Huanfei, HE Xin, HONG Bo, JIN Lu,
LAU Lik Alaric, LAU Yu Keung, LEE Tsz Kwan Peggie, LEONG Chou
Sern, LI Yimeng, LIAO Xiaoju, LIU Jun, MA Jack Jian, MA Xiaohui,
QUAN Fei, SHIH Pui Ying, SONG Lihua, WANG Zhigiang, WOO Lap

Hoi, XU Beilin, XU Shiqing and ZHU Qi.

* He/she has resigned/retired as a Director of the relevant subsidiary

of the Bank.

2

Directors are listed alphabetically by their last names.
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Directors’ interests in shares

None of the directors have been granted, or have exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares of the Bank.

At no time during the financial year was the Bank, or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any other
body corporate.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, a permitted indemnity
provision that meets the requirements specified in section 469(2) of the
Companies Ordinance for the benefit of Directors of the Bank is in force.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangement or contracts

No transactions, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation to the
Bank’s business to which the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a director of
the Bank or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or
subsisting during the year.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules which
set out the minimum standards for public disclosure which authorised
institutions must make in respect of the income statement, state of affairs
and capital adequacy. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comply fully with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates retirement schemes for its employees. Details of the
Group’s retirement schemes are set out in Note 15 to the financial
statements.

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Bank is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Zhu Qi

Chairman

20 March 2020
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To the Member of CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CMB Wing
Lung Bank Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as "the Group") set out on pages 10 to 153, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Calculation of expected credit loss ("ECL'") on loans
and advances to customers in Stage 3

We identified the calculation of ECL on loans and advances to customers
in Stage 3 as a key audit matter due to the involvement of significant
management judgement.
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Calculation of expected credit loss ("ECL") on loans
and advances to customers in Stage 3 (Continued)

As set out in note 4.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
defines the impairment assessment rules by segment to estimate future
cash flows individually or by the Rule-based Approach. The ECL for
non-retail segment at Stage 3 and the ECL for retail segment with
exposure at default not less than HK$ 50 million at Stage 3 are
determined on an individual basis using a discounted cashflow
methodology. The expected future cash flows are based on the credit risk
estimates as at the reporting date, reflecting reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of future recoveries and expected future
receipts of interest. Collateral is taken into account if it is likely that the
recovery of the outstanding amount will include realisation of collateral
based on its estimated fair value of collateral at the time of expected
realisation, less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral. The cash
flows are discounted at a reasonable approximation of the effective
interest rate.

As at 31 December 2019, as set out in note 21(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, gross loans and advances to customers mainly
comprised of corporate and individual loans amounting to HK$174,420
million. HK$970 million out of the gross loans and advances to
customers balance has been classified as Stage 3 loans. An ECL of
HKS$887 million has been recognised in relation to these loans as
disclosed in note 4.1(h) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's disclosures with regards to the relevant significant
accounting policies, the related financial risk management as well as the
relevant critical accounting estimates and judgements are contained in
notes 1.7, 4.1(c)(i) and 2.1 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the calculation of ECL on loans and
advances to customers in Stage 3 included the following:

- Understanding the Group's policies and methodology for the
determination of ECL;

- Assessing the key controls over credit approval, review and
monitoring processes, the internal credit rating system, impairment
assessment processes and collateral valuation;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management's internal credit rating
for a selection of performing loans by reviewing the corresponding
loan files;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management's classification of a
selection of the credit-impaired loans by reviewing the corresponding
loan files;

- Examining the collateral valuation reports and other evidence
provided by management and challenging the reasonableness of
management's assumptions in determining the estimated fair value of
the collateral at the time of expected realisation and the cost for
obtaining and selling the collateral;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)

- Evaluating and challenging key assumptions underlying the
management's credit risk estimates, projection of future recoveries,
expected future receipts of interest and approximation of effective
interest rate estimation; and

- Testing the arithmetic accuracy of the calculation of the impairment
provision for a sample of loans and advances to customers in Stage 3.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erTor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.



FLX AR S
Independent Auditor’s Report

% BRSSP RIENE

AITH HEE R B G E MR BT A FE
PR R E BB A T L Y B R S SR B S &
HirsE > WHEEBEATER (IREEEAE
fRBISE 405 6 RET N REGIRE ) HIRKEED
s MAEHAEAY o AT EsAREH
WA E R EA A& EBORIERE - S8k
sE KRNI REE - (A e fRas e T G
AERHEFTHY L » AR — BRSSP A AT
HERE SRR o SRR AT DA RSB RA S [
ied 25 B T O 5L B R LR 4T ] E 52 2B (o FH 2 (R
L E GG BERAE L EORIE - AERE
A SERABR A AT E K -

AR & TR A T AR T - AT
HEEIEHE - (RFFESREEERE - A1T75 -

- R RS S R E B R T A B AR A
BB E R SRR e - 55T R
HITE LA A UE LA R - DU SEHL
TR ENEIZERE - (F R A TR RAE
B o HRIGEERRES R Rt ~ (BiE ~ B R
H -~ R R EE R R EEdl s E o
DRIEE R BE S4 PR AR T B 2 Y B A S 3R PR
ACF R\ 1 11 AR BE S 3R IR S R T LBV B
R FE AR -

- EEAREEE AR RIS > DS E
A ZiE - BERIIRE  SEEANE
PERIVAE IR RER -

- SHMEESATRAGEBORIE B RE
st hEt AR R Ry & E M -

- HESERMFECE GRS
s - IRIBATEHE LRSS © HER
B AR EI G A BV E KRR HEE
Mo e REE R HEENRELE
REJJEAEAREERE - WRAITRRIFEE
RAHEENE > A AL BTS2
a7 (o B R B4R & I 185 i R P YA B 98
B o (RERRENE A TEE BN
B o AITHYSER S IR BT H 3
IEFTHUS AR XSRS © 28010 > REARKEIAE
ERATREES REEELREEE -

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may  involve  collusion, forgery, intentional
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

omissions,

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Ha Hong Yiu, Vico.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2020
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CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

SR

Consolidated Income Statement

BZ2_O—NE+_H=+—HI1EZ®EE For the year ended 31 December 2019

—O—N —O—N
2019 2018
G BT AT T
Note HK$°000 HKS$°000
FEUA Interest income 5 10,074,579 9,449,499
HMESZH Interest expense 6 (4,854,348) (4,684,358)
BRI E WA Net interest income 5,220,231 4,765,141
Ak 758 R AR WA Fees and commission income 1,075,403 1,041,288
M58 k&~ Fees and commission expense (206,337) (206,879)
IR E F iU A Net fees and commission income 7 869,066 834,409
(= AN Insurance operating income 8 747,888 475,569
TR G g Net trading gain 9 241,787 100,992
HE DA EEESE AEM 4 Net gain on disposal of financial assets
HU S 2 S RE E 25U at fair value through other
= comprehensive income 79,142 47,886
HoAth & SEULA Other operating income 10 242,153 249,883
= PN Operating income 7,400,267 6,473,880
SRR Net insurance claims 8 (276,308) (285,846)
Operating income net of insurance
REIREBRERZZERA claims 7,123,959 6,188,034
BEETH Operating expenses 11 (2,333,384) (2,168,859)
Operating profit before impairment
RV R 2 B F] charge 4,790,575 4,019,175
EREREES Impairment losses 12 (500,234) (850,405)
BRI Operating profit 4,290,341 3,168,770
g N EE(ESTE)  Fair value (losses)/gains on investment
W 2 properties 25 (64,367) 44,770
H & HAY)E FEc s 2 Net gain on disposal of other properties
bl and equipment 50,848 404
Net gain/(loss) on redemption of
I ] 27 8 B e A 1 B 2 S financial instruments at amortised
TEZ 5w (8518) cost 13 586 (30,236)
LB I S Y ] 2 0 U g Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary - 1,292
FIWEHEEERTEL 2 ¥ Forfeited deposit arising from assets
RULET & classified as held for sale - 118,333
Share of net profit of jointly controlled
JE(E LB EIE S F A entities 36,462 391,372
N NGIPSe il Share of net profit of associates 422,068 77,785
STl Profit before taxation 4,735,938 3,772,490
F gt Income tax 16 (748,646) (553,837)
EEFERSF] Profit for the year 3,987,292 3,218,653
)i Attributable to:
RITHER Equity shareholders of the Bank 3,986,589 3,219,302
JEPZE Y B B AR 25 Non-controlling interests 703 (649)

BN 15 HES 153 HZ SR Rt SFEGa il

Z—HR{ -

statements.
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AR KERTARAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

SEeEWER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE2_O0O—NEFE+H=+—HIEZ®FE For the year ended 31 December 2019

—O0—h —O—N
2019 2018
AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
AR HF] Profit for the year 3,987,292 3,218,653
RAEEHM2EWES/GEH) Other comprehensive income/(expense) for
the year
HBUEERSEZERESESZ Items that may be reclassified subsequently
JEH to the income statement:
DI EESE A M EHE W Z 2 Financial assets at fair value through other
ESMEE comprehensive income
- INPEEE S - Changes in fair value 144,777 (645,157)
- R ERE A UL FER - Transfer to income statement on disposal (79,142) (47,886)
- Transfer to income statement on
- PRBE R AU R impairment 116,375 606,210
JEAE T & N\ T 2 Share of associates’ reserves 28,015 (4,632)
JFE A S [] P2 461 e > (et Share of jointly controlled entities’ reserves - (5,512)
Exchange difference on translation of financial
R BESN 17 R 8 . =] 5 statements of overseas branches and
Tl 3% e AR Y B 42 22 B subsidiaries (128,530) (216,337)
HremEugssE B g Effect of deferred taxation on other
oA comprehensive income items (53,304) 34,392
HBAGEFTEZRREEZ Items that will not be reclassified
IEH : subsequently to the income statement:
DI EESEA B M 2EULES 2 Equity securities at fair value through other
A HERE 77 comprehensive income
- NP EESE - Changes in fair value (52,480) (198,288)
B FEZ KER Surplus on revaluation of bank premises 393 7,194
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
FUE AT B s (B51H) schemes 1,768 (87,029)
Hir 2w zsIE H B IEEMTE > Effect of deferred taxation on other
= comprehensive income items 1,692 13,499
REFHMP2EZH Other comprehensive expense for the year (20,436) (543,546)
AEESEWIRLEE Total comprehensive income for the year 3,966,856 2,675,107
) N Attributable to:
ARATHER Equity shareholders of the Bank 3,966,153 2,675,756
242 I Y Pt SRR 2 Non-controlling interests 703 (649)

R 15 HEF 153 H s ItE

Z—Hb o

SrE B R

statements.
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HREKERITARAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

SEMBIRILR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—O—n4FE+=H=-+—H Asat 31 December 2019

—O—h —O—N
2019 2018
AR BT AT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B5E Assets
FEEFERE - FEERL Cash, balances and placements with and
=8 loans and advances to banks 17 66,327,987 86,497,559
AR T E Derivative financial instruments 18 588,286 487,673
u/\ﬂ?’@{an  ATER IR Financial assets at fair value through profit
ZEphE or loss 19 6,736,721 6,659,013
HHRE Investments in securities 20 72,130,647 47,998,906
S HAIETE Advances and other accounts 21 187,931,963 165,267,211
HLEEEIE LS Interests in jointly controlled entities 23 203,071 192,144
Hﬁﬁ%&ﬁlifﬁéﬁ Interests in associates 24 3,074,800 2,625,812
BB E Investment properties 25 3,171,350 3,266,150
FTHE R s Interests in leasehold land 26 157,674 161,427
,Jﬁj%%)jﬁ 5 Other properties and equipment 27 1,492,709 1,268,427
B] [B| g F7 IE Tax recoverable 783 614
PRIEFRIA & FE Deferred tax assets 30 27,347 50,917
SIEHEEE Assets classified as held for sale 32 - 1,980
4R Total assets 341,843,338 314,477,833
=Vt Liabilities
EE 214 Deposits and balances from banks 27,238,432 35,401,573
THEE TN &E Trading liabilities 309,136 -
?ﬁéé%ﬂlﬁ Derivative financial instruments 18 393,553 769,341
ZEER Deposits from customers 28 243,135,943 221,329,402
fjrffﬁZﬁT)\‘” Certificates of deposit issued 3,725,259 7,624,032
BT 1B EETE Subordinated debts issued 29 3,110,591 3,128,160
BRI Current taxation 738,707 211,269
IRIEFIHE(E Deferred tax liabilities 30 30,823 1,937
H A RETE & TETE Other accounts and accruals 31 16,417,757 5,996,688
AN=T Total liabilities 295,100,201 274,462,402
R4 Equity
s A Share capital 33 1,160,951 1,160,951
EEHE Reserves 34 37,862,710 34,270,559
Total equity attributable to shareholders of
BRI AT R s 5T the Bank 39,023,661 35,431,510
FHIMER T H Additional equity instruments 29 7,708,361 4,573,230
JEFEEIAY R B 25 Non-controlling interests 11,115 10,691
e Total equity 46,743,137 40,015,431
WS B (EAEEE Total equity and liabilities 341,843,338 314,477,833

KEN_OZOFEZA Z+HAEEGEBENITHE

24 - March 2020.
RE EER Zhu Qi

AR HERH TR Hong Bo

%EB“” 15 E@ 153 H 25 Rt EGr e Bk

—HB 0y

financial statements.
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HREKERITARAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

SERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B2_O—NE+=H=+—HI1EZ4EE For the year ended 31 December 2019

B EfiER
FERE BERE FyMEs  FRIERIN
Bank  Financial TH HBEHEER
A BEAEE premises asset  EAMEEHEE  (REEESH Additional Non-
Share Capital revaluation revaluation Other Retained NEE equity controlling &t
capital reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Sub-total instruments interests Total

BETT BETT A% AT BETT BNTR a%T BNTT BETIRI #FTh
HK$°000 HKS°000  HK$000 HKS$'000  HKS$’000  HKS$000  HKS'000  HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$°000

W _O—/\FE—H—H At 1 January 2018 1,160,951 57,500 562,916 (3,564) 941,236 30,294,226 33,013,265 4,573,230 53,810 37,640,305
ZO—/\FHERRHEEE
s Changes in equity for 2018:
AR Net profit for the year - - - - - 3,219,302 3,219,302 - (649) 3,218,653
Other comprehensive
A HoA A U 2/ income/(expense) for
(71D the year - - 19,502  (274,042)  (168,796)  (120,210)  (543,546) - - (543,546)
Total comprehensive
AL S L/ income/(expense) for
(GZi)se the year - - 19,502 (274,042)  (168,796) 3,099,092 2,675,756 - (649) 2,675,107
Transfer to retained
earnings on disposal of
PHEDUAFEERE equity securities at fair
HoAth 2GRS 2 B AE value through other
SO A ORI comprehensive income - - - 5,114 - (5,114) - - - -
PRI R R Y Amount decrease in
T non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (42,470) (42,470)
Distribution for additional
HYMERS TE YD equity instruments - - - - - (257,511)  (257,511) - - (257,511)
woO—/\#F+—H
=+—HEZO—J.  At31December 2018 and
F—H—H 1 January 2019 1,160,951 57,500 582,418 (272,492) 772,440 33,130,693 35,431,510 4,573,230 10,691 40,015,431
ZO—NFERE R R
s Changes in equity for 2019:
AR A Net profit for the year - - - - - 3,986,589 3,986,589 - 703 3,987,292
Other comprehensive
AL A A T AR/ income/(expense) for
(2 the year - - 10,380 96,225  (110,681)  (16,360) (20,436) - - (20,436)
Total comprehensive
AL SIS/ income/(expense) for
(CZH)4EE the year - - 10,380 96,225 (110,681) 3,970,229 3,966,153 - 703 3,966,856
Transfer to retained
earnings on disposal of
PHEDATFEERE equity securities at fair
Hofth U s > B value through other
ST IE A CRH comprehensive income - - - 18,158 - (18,158) - - - -
Redemption of additional
equity instruments - - - - - (18,330) (18,330) (2,015,390) - (2,033,720
Issue of additional equity
BTHIMER THE instruments - - - - - - - 5150521 - 5150521
JEEHI IR R RS Y Amount decrease in
T non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (279) (279)
Distribution for additional
HYMER TE I equity instruments - - - - - (355,672) (355,672) - - (355,672)
PZO—4F
+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2019 1,160,951 57,500 592,798 (158,109) 661,759 36,708,762 39,023,661 7,708,361 11,115 46,743,137
BTN BB T L B A THVEES N — 4 E AN K B RIIE R During the year, the Bank issued undated non-cumulative subordinated capital securities
EBEEAD S5 S HLET 660,000,000 T (% [F H b which qualified as additional Tier 1 capital of the Bank totalling US$660,000,000
5,162,530,000 JT) > BEEEE{THCAAERE 12,009,000 TTE/EHERS (equivalent to HK$5,162,530,000). Direct issuance costs of HK$12,009,000 are
TEAHIBR AR accounted for as a deduction from the equity instruments.
HANEE 15 25 153 H B IS4 aMB®RE The notes on pages 15 to 153 form part of these consolidated financial
#xzm/\ o
bl statements.
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AR KERTARAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

HERERER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
B2_O—NE+=H=+—HI1EZ4EE For the year ended 31 December 2019

—O—h —O—N
2019 2018
G AT AT T
Note HK$’000 HKS$°000
B rah ISR AR Cash generated from operations 38(a) 12,991,373 268,279
TR ARG Hong Kong profits tax paid (112,727) (364,891)
SATEIMRIE Overseas tax paid (107,263) (125,374)
Net cash generated from/(used in)
B IS AR )R operating activities 12,771,383 (221,986)
EEE Investing activities
A IS Purchase of investment in securities (59,120,771) (36,977,955)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of
HVE SB[ R A TS 2 200E investment in securities 50,357,748 35,614,518
FER = NG Z B A Acquisition of share capital of an associate - (75,000)
U L [E 32 B g K e\ =] Dividends received from jointly controlled
;%45 entities and associates 26,630 28,285
Payment for additions of other properties
BB HAIE R as and equipment (49,301) (70,994)
Proceeds from disposal of other properties
H & ECAISE MR (RS 2 FOH and equipment 53,253 994
E = Pt P oA ] Net cash used in investing activities (8,732,441) (1,480,152)
BhETEE Financing activities
Distribution for additional equity
BYMER T B instruments (355,672) (257,511)
BTEIMEL TH Issue of additional equity instruments 5,150,521 -
Redemption of additional equity
S ERS ME s TH instruments (2,015,390) -
EEEHTIRERES Repayment of subordinated debts issued - (1,569,960)
SAFHEAE Payment of lease liabilities (93,835) -
RSB R M RS R ) Amount decrease in non-controlling interests (279) (42,470)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
B EEIZHS R AR F28 activities 2,685,345 (1,869,941)
e FERRLSEE 2 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
1GED) equivalents 6,724,287 (3,572,079)
N—HE—HRENERHELIEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 38,711,292 41,610,185
YNBSS S Effects of foreign exchange rate changes 219,139 673,186
RTZA=+—HHREKER
HETEH Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 38(b) 45,654,718 38,711,292
Cash flows from operating activities
B EHVHEHREBARE include:
FIEMA Interest received 9,879,900 8,974,093
FIR Interest paid 4,920,476 4,782,562
B ELUST A Dividends received 62,411 45,013

N 15 HE 153 HZ s R B EGE M HE

Z—Hb o

statements.
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AR ERTTRERAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRER

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 EEEETBER

11 $mBdEne
R aMBHRENVMEBEBEML Z &AM
BHEEMN HFAHEEGMLY
A8 i A H A8 2 (& R R AR
A~ HBGTEA KiesE  FELTER
Gz gt A - ARG E R R F I
aiE (SFERe) ZFEXK -
A& & W R DU 2 AW BE R
B MEL LA EEG ARRRZ &M
HFERABBWEEBETESMTR) Do
L RN o A o T i o O
RIEEYE 2 EfLFHEET -
G BT & & O RS e E R A 2 TS
RABEH S HER Z g5t fhst > FHEE
HELTENAEEGHBRZBRE TP
F tH B - 08 RECR AR E 2 B RS
R N G i S N T
RERAERZE G I RaER
20
FEGITE AT EMMZHE BT
HEE ZEET MR O —JLE—H
—HHZ & ZE FEERBER - A%
B E PR Ay~ 51 B SE R A BE 2 B AT
Z & B AR
- mEMBWmE LN T H
8 o HAEFEGEAE 179 H
B RCH AR Ay ER R - 3% AR AU
HAaiE RKH A ABTEEARBERNA
MEHEMNEEAMERIESH
EWER MHUHE -HEEABER
A et i A A AQ -
B E & E AR AR R AR
NG N N RN -
KHEHE&HE ELEEENAME
e Jo DOMH BRI Y SR (E 5t & 0 3
FI AR T R 8 8RR R AL 3 - i
AEREZHYFENTLUE M
B & A 5 R AR SR -
B 5 B FH 49 AH BE B RROOHE R 48 4 R
Wiz g R PN R SR R FH s S - R I
N EHGRA AT
& -

BFE R EOREFFSI R EREL22 -

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including
derivative financial instruments), financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and investment properties.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs, which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
Group adopted the following revised HKFRSs which are relevant to its
operations:

- HKFRS 16, Leases, superseded HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations. The standard eliminates the current requirements for
lessees to distinguish between on-balance sheet finance leases and
off-balance sheet operating leases. They are to be replaced by a single,
on-balance sheet accounting model instead.

Lessee will recognize a right of use asset and a corresponding lease
liability on the statement of financial position when the leased asset is
available for use. These asset and liability are initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate. The right of use asset is depreciated over
the lease term and the lease liability is measured at amortised cost.

Payments associated with short-term leases will continue to be
recognised as rental expense in the income statement. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

These new requirements are set out in Note 1.22.
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AR ERTTRERAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRER

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 EEEEER (@)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 RBSERE () 1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
T A M OB WA R 165E K BOK Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
AEBEgsrEAFE 175N HHE A HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating
e stEE S HFH A B % E(E or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17. The adoption
e EEga EAE 17BN of HKFRS 16 has no impacts on leases where the Group is the lessor.
JRAIKGHE > /B EXEHENRHE
HE - SR EEM BHREEAFE 16
SR AEE L N HE A WHESE I
5 B
KEBELEWE N RWEEN The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively but has not restated
HwaEERHIE165E > Wik HERAND the comparative information for prior periods, as permitted under the
8 B PR 3K 0 % I Al BA A A transitional provisions in the standard. The adjustments arising from
b E R - NIt W EEM B & the adoption of HKFRS 16 are therefore recognised in the statement of
e HIEE 1658 F 2 A= 1Y 3 2% financial position on 1 January 2019.
—O—NNE—H—HEWHIR
FHMER o
MNERWE B B H S EASE 165 On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
B K& 7[<E BEEEgHEAELT relation to leases which had previously been classified as “operating
FHRAER A C B &% leases” under the principles of HKAS 17. These liabilities were
HE WHAORHEAE %EA measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
EUAR R E A B E & W discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
FERHEHEAR_-_O—NLFE—H— January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
Hiy & &R FRAEH - A =0 — rate applied to the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 was 3.69%.
hE—-HA—-HERRHEHE&AEED
IO RE S R FH N B &2 5 ORI R &
3.69% -
AT T
HK$’000
N_O— N NFE+_H=+—HH Operating lease commitments as at
BRI KIE 31 December 2018 297,245
W RN O—NEF+_H=+—HW Less: short-term leases commitments as at
FEITH &9 K 31 December 2018 (53,578)
B PR AR ZO— j'L ﬂi A—Hm Less: impact of discount by using the lessee’s
e e IS = Hb I oY 2 & incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 (18,928)
PRZO—NE—H—HEZDN
HEE&E Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 224,739

EHEEEAHENHEHE AR
st B e B ET 8 o BRI I SR
A - R A RHNHE
[E] 3 2 AE ¢ KB 49 H 38 %6
HE -

The right of use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease
liability with no effects on deferred tax or retained earnings. There
were no onerous lease contracts that would have required an
adjustment to the right of use assets at the date of initial application.

CREEEEE MBS EE The recognised right of use assets relate to the following types of
HMAT assets:
AT
HK$’000
5 E Premises 224,533
1% Fe 3% 15 Furniture and equipment 206
BZO—JFE—H—H@ERR
{5 FH 1 & Right of use assets recognised as at 1 January 2019 224,739
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ArKERITARAH
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRER

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 FESHEBER (&) 1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.1 RBSELRE (4) 1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
N R E &SR E On initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group has used the following
lo5E s » REBOHEHLL TE B practical expedients:
7o
- HEAMHOUEENHESEESE - the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
A B — JE IR R reasonably similar characteristics;
- KEBAFIBENRNEHERSEHEN - reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous;
SFAl S
- BN ZO—hL&FE—H—H#Fee - the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of
FHAHR DN+ @B & less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases;
FH & R 56 B FH &9 2 B
- RURELGHEEEAEEE - the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right
HRAEEYEESEER & of use asset at the date of initial application; and
- BEHNBEEREA EHEDN - the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the
BEREREN > (I 18 R 2 BH DLHE contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
JE ML FH -
AKEFEHIFEERERY XEWHAR The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or
BN EENE T BEHE EE contains, a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
L - MK stE B IINE entered into before the transition date, the Group relied on its
KYME > AEEKBEERHEEE assessment made applying HKAS 17 Leases and HK (IFRIC) - Int 4
SEAEI7THR"HE REEMH Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.
WA A4S T E —IHY
et EaME ) ralh -
BEaAgeWBHE#GHIE & Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
HEiAGAMTETHRE/ KB EF HKICPA has also issued certain new/revised HKFRSs which are not yet
EMBEHEER s ZFEAE AR O effective for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2019 and have not
— N —-H - HHBZgTEEALE been early adopted by the Group. The Group is in the process of making an
oo AEEARA R PRI FAEA - assessment of what the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs is expected
AEEIEREAL L FE /KB 2/ to be in the period of initial application. The following new/revised
M EEBAESEERBEEEDN Y HKFRSs are relevant to the Group’s operations:
oo NY /KB 2 E AWM B HRE
A R B AR B ] SE RS AH R
- HHREOEHIE | BEEHETE - Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of Material, which
HIZE 8 SR sl " HWERMENE is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
2 MNR-ZOZOHFE—H—H=HZ®%&
ZEEHE B A AR -
- K" /% ) ﬁ %&J HEHRAIE 357 2 E5]T B - Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Definition of a Business”, which is
i % 9 = 5% ’jji —0=0 E** H— effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
HElz gz gt EERBER -
- BEBEVHEREEANE 17THRTRES - HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, which is effective for annual periods
[E ’ﬁ: —0=— E+¥ A—H=EZ%& beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
ZEEHEEREER -
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M B HRER

Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 clarify the definition of materiality
of information and align the definition used across other accounting
standards. The application of these amendments will not have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify the definition of a business, with the
objective of assisting entities to determine whether a business combination
transaction should be accounted for as a business combination or as an
asset acquisition. The application of these amendments will not have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 17 supersedes the current insurance contracts standard HKFRS 4.
The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts, with an
objective to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that
faithfully represents insurance contracts. The Group is in the process of
considering its impact.

1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. They include entities in which the Bank, directly or
indirectly, controls the composition of the Board of Directors, controls
more than half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued
share capital.

Interests in subsidiaries are consolidated into the financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
inter-company transactions are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The Group has interests in certain unconsolidated structured entities which
include (i) investment funds established and managed by the Group to
generate fees from managing assets on behalf of investors; and (ii)
third-party managed investment funds purchased by the Group.

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s interests in
unconsolidated structured entities is the carrying amount of the assets held
and is included in Notes 19 and 20. As at 31 December 2019, no financial
support was given to the unconsolidated structured entities (2018: Nil).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.3 Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

A jointly controlled entity is an arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are initially
recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets and any
impairment losses relating to the investment. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly controlled entities and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the jointly controlled entities’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

1.4 Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decision. This is generally accompanied
by a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The Group’s interests in associates are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and are initially recorded at
cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associates’ net assets and any impairment losses relating to the
investment. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the associates and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the associates’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in the consolidated income statement as follows:

(a) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or received between
parties to the contract, including cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans, that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent increase of such net
present value of impaired assets due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest income.

(b) Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided by
the Group and is recognised when the corresponding service is
provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is interest in
nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the cost or risk is incurred and is
accounted for as interest income.

(c) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments
is recognised as interest income over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned. Commission paid to dealers for acquisition
of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is included in the
carrying value of the assets and amortised to the consolidated income
statement over the expected life of the lease as an adjustment to
interest income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(d) Rental income for operating lease

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised as
other operating income in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of
the investment goes ex-dividend.

1.6 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets under the following categories:
financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The classification depends on the business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, or the election
of fair value option. Management determines the classification at initial
recognition.

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
amortised cost.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to an
allowance account which reduces the carrying amounts of these
assets. If the amount of impairment allowances decreases in
subsequent periods, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss.

This category includes most of the balances and placements with

and loans and advances to banks, advances to customers, certain
trade bills and debt securities.
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1 FEETBER (&) 1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 SREE &) 1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

b))  LACSFEEZZA BN e 2 il B (b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

DWW ELNR R MEHEREE Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
MEESEATFEZSMEE I objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
HIE S RERASHF EKIE G selling financial assets, and that have contractual cash flows that are
LA (E 58 A H A 2 Uk = 51 solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
5 e outstanding, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.
HEsMEEMLAFEEED LR These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
5 B AR AT W a6 HE R 0 W 1 & DA transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. The
AVEEFE BFEFEEXERBRZA subsequent changes in the fair value of these assets (except those
S8 {H 2 Bl (Br AH B A 0 A R relating to interest income and impairment) are recognised in other
B 4829 7> = 2 UL 7 fEEY o UK comprehensive income. Impairment allowances are recognised in
BEEMNREEENL > IAHEFHER profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
fir = mEU M A =HI R ZEEE income without reducing the carrying amounts of these assets. The
By MR TR (E - 40 0L 5 & E By e K amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the
FIHR > HAF 18 a5 P AE SR 19 & %H 39 M amounts that would have been recognised in profit or loss if these
[E o F5 Ja (28 <= 25 7> 1% 18 HA R R assets have been measured at amortised cost. If the amount of
s AR EIEL FEEESER - F impairment allowances decreases in subsequent periods, the
MR TH P b g8 I B A At & impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. Upon
HW#HEN BT EwBEER derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
15 %5 TifE 58 other comprehensive income shall be transferred to profit or loss.
LA EE RO PEEEE - E15 This category includes most of the trade bills, debt securities, certain
BHr - ETHEEREERRER balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks, and
B e advances to customers.
ZNE S WIN e L N | R i The Group has also elected to designate some equity investments
REKEREEUAFEEE AR (that is not held for trading) at fair value through other
emimat s LEREREE comprehensive income. The subsequent changes in the fair value of
B AN EEESEHENEMEE these equity investments are recognised in other comprehensive
W HERE - A HEE U AR HE R income, with only dividend income recognised in profit or loss.
R - B il e EELS Unlike the financial assets mentioned above, these equity
H o> L HEREEREENTEEETRE investments are not subject to impairment assessment. Upon
PR o FERRTE S R R B > \mAEE derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
FHEHMEE RSB 2 EitES other comprehensive income shall not be transferred to profit or loss,
BAReEEEES MEEEEE and shall be transferred to retained earnings.
B i Al R ER
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1 FESHEBER (&) 1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 ERIEE (&) 1.6 Financial assets (Continued)
(©) LIS FEEZEA s il = (c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
1ol = 1R ST v R e = 57 W =l 7N A This category has two sub-categories: financial assets mandatorily
BEHEAEREZ2SMEE NXIE measured at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets
ELLAFEHEZAERKZ S designated at fair value through profit or loss.
HE -
() MELAFERESAERIKEZ (i) Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through
&R E E profit or loss
&R E E Financial assets that:
- WIELLUWEL & &Y & 7 5k - are held in a business model whose objective is neither hold
D Hm&EYREREHRE to collect contractual cash flows nor hold to collect
Ry H BE Ay pg 2 M =L o contractual cash flows and sell, or
H o B
- HE &R WIEE B A & H - have contractual cash flows that are not solely payments of
F B FIE - B principal and interest, or
- IEHEE LA FEEEZE A - are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
1875 IR
HHEMLNAFEEE ABHE are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Rt & -
& e mEENAFEEE These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, with
THIEHERL > X B R A H transaction costs taken directly to the income statement, and are
FIAUW s RN - AR LA subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in
FEESE - LEFEEFEERZ the fair value of these assets are recognised as “Net gain/loss
NP RN & U arising from financial instruments mandatorily measured at
FNHERE By T HREDAFEESE fair value through profit or loss” in the consolidated income
AR 2 & Rl T BP0 S statement. These financial assets are not subject to impairment
Ho- EFEEBEENTHE assessment.
17 kB FE Ad -
I 38 B F B E B e R This category mainly composed of debt and equity investments.
B -
(i) FHEEUDPFEESABRGRZ (ii) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
&Rl E E
TF & ¥ 888k AR 51 HE 56 DA A Financial assets that meet the amortised cost or fair value
FEEE A B A 4 | UL s s through other comprehensive income criteria may be
BEHRGNEMERE UFET designated by management to be measured at fair value through
A > 7 B E g R Y R profit or loss (“fair value option”) at inception if they meet the
HE LA FEEESE AE following criteria:
wiREE(T AFEEEEE
)
- Z¥E E BE M BR B FE B OHhOR - The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
& LLK [E] BE 88 F 3 & & b measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
EaEo s EEISmE R referred to as “an accounting mismatch™) that would
KN— st 2o iR 2B otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
TL(ETE R T EEEED ) recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases:
i or
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.6 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(if)  Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

- A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about these assets is
provided internally to the management.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement, and are
subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in
the fair value of these assets are recognised as “Net gain/loss
arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss” in the consolidated income statement.
These financial assets are not subject to impairment
assessment.

This category mainly composed of debt securities.

Purchases and sales of securities are recognised on trade-date - the date on
which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the
instrument. Loans and advances are recognised when cash is advanced to
the borrowers.

1.7 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises expected credit loss (“ECL”) on the following
financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss:

- Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks
- Debt securities

- Advances to customers and trade bills

- Insurance premium receivable

- Certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.
At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for ECL resulting

from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (or less,
where the remaining life is less than 12 months) (“12-month ECL”).

In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is
required for ECL resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of the financial instrument (“life-time ECL”).

24



AR ERTTRERAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRERE

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 EEEEER (@)

17 EREERE @)

M H TR (5 6 18 K 18 B 8 8
FEH =P ek -

&
pi

- EEMEE B AR EEE
HRE K2 A RS S R R KE LT
By 15 DL > o B8 R 5B — B B IO R T
so T ZE HHBIE&EL -

- EHEMEEHRVAHERLEILERSE
BAE o HE R E ' R B A E LT
ORISR/ s i Sl I S 2 g AR
i & W E 1R L

- HEMEEFEEFBEENSRENCE
EEME OB =ERIE
P EERK -

JFHIE B IRAH 512

HHIEERANGTEREENNNAR - E

K48 I 8 R 4 L B K HE B ok B R Y

B 2R R R E LV AR R R AT A = AR DL

Al B 1 ) R R Y EE S R -

—MmE HHEERAGRESNE

AL AP A & €3 &R 8K 5 E

TR FT A R &R 28 HE KR

AR F AL -

MEFRENS  HHEERALOR

A eE R A N IE IS R E K % E 5

aNHeRBERAEBHNPAERENE

%%@%@%E@ﬁ%Z%W%@%

BEMERSOMNE  AHEEEAR

HHESEREOR A AEEKE LR

FEEFEBER A A EH A SE A H A

HEGHEM R E -

15 B (&

1
it

E (BB EE)

A6 B & E &5 E AT 65 TH & R
FEEGELBESEEREEN - & 5%
E R E Y & B E E AR R 2R
ERBERAFNEER  AREMEE
Mg HEEERE SFERESMEE
8RS =R EE - HF B A HER
E ZE R R HY SFE ST IR - R E E HR
SERENEEOFEERSRRK T
B
(1) g?kﬁ%%k&ﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁ
(i) K& &40 8 3 5 8 R R
5A &

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The application of the ECL model will result in three stages of financial
assets:

- A financial asset is classified under Stage 1 if it was not
credit-impaired upon origination and there has not been a significant
increase in its credit risk since inception. Recognition for 12-month
ECL is required.

- A financial asset is classified under Stage 2 if it was not
credit-impaired upon origination but has since suffered a significant
increase in credit risk. Recognition for life-time ECL is required.

- A financial asset which has been credit-impaired with objective
evidence of default is classified under Stage 3 and is assessed for
life-time ECL.

Measurement of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate.

For loan commitments, the ECL is the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the holder
of the commitment draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.

For financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder of the guarantee contract less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 assets)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets
are referred to as Stage 3 assets and their interests are accrued net of the
impairment amounts. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes but not limited to the following observable data:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(ii)  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 assets) (Continued)

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been rescheduled due to a deterioration in the borrower’s
financial condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when contractual payment
are more than 90 days past due.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has significantly
increased since origination, both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information is considered.

More details on the determination of a significant increase in credit risk
are set out in Note 4.1.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, unless there is
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise, the
Group presumes that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are 30 days past due or more.

Modification

A financial asset is modified when the contractual terms governing the
cash flows of a financial asset are modified between initial recognition
and maturity of the financial asset.

The modified financial asset is derecognised if the existing agreement is
cancelled and a new agreement is made on substantially different terms or
if the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the modified
financial asset is a substantially different financial instrument.

In the case where the modified financial asset is derecognised, the ECL is
remeasured at the date of derecognition to determine the net carrying
amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised
carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset will lead to a
gain/loss on derecognition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Modification (Continued)

The new financial asset will generally has an impairment allowance
measured based on 12-month ECL.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition, the Group calculates
the modification gain/loss by comparing the gross carrying amount before
and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance).

The Group determines if the credit risk of the modified financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a
default occurring at the reporting date (based on the modified contractual
terms) and that at initial recognition (based on the original, unmodified
contractual terms).

If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected at
initial recognition, the impairment allowance will continue to be measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The impairment allowance will only
be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the
borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following modification leading
to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off with related impairment
allowances (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is the case when the Group determines that the borrower
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. Such loans and
debt securities are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
decrease the impairment charge to income statement.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Impairment allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial
position as follows:

- financial assets at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets;

- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income: no
impairment allowance is presented in the statement of financial
position as the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value.
However, the impairment allowance is recognised in the financial
asset revaluation reserve; and

- loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision on the liabilities side.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

The Group classifies its financial

recognised initially at fair value.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories:
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Trading liabilities

Trading liabilities are financial liabilities that are incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term.
It is carried at fair value and any changes in fair value are
recognised as ‘“Net gain/loss
instruments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
or loss” in the consolidated income statement.

(if) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or

loss

A financial liability is designated as fair value through profit
or loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities
so designated include certain certificates of deposit issued
and certain deposits received from customers that are
embedded with derivatives. A financial liability is typically
so designated if it meets the following criteria:

- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial liabilities
or recognising the gains and losses on them on different

bases;

- A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, i
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about these liabilities is provided internally

to the management; or

28

liabilities under the following
categories: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debts issued and
other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

trading liabilities and

arising from financial
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(if) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

- It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss
arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss” in the consolidated income statement,
except for fair value changes arising from own credit risks are
recognised as other comprehensive income and subsequently
reclassified to the retained earnings upon derecognition.

(b) Deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debts issued
and other liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debts
issued, other than those classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, together with other financial liabilities are
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the other financial
liabilities using the effective interest method.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received from issuance, net of direct issue costs.

1.9 Repos and reverse repos

Securities sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase
agreement are referred to as repos. Securities purchased from a
counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos are initially recorded as deposits and balances from banks at the
actual amount of cash received from the counterparty. Financial assets
given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised and are
recorded as investment in securities or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Reverse repos are initially recorded as balances and
placements with banks at the actual amount of cash paid to the
counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under reverse
repurchase agreements are not recognised in the statement of financial
position. The difference between sale and repurchase price is recognised
as interest income or interest expense over the life of the agreements using
the effective interest method.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
their fair value. Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host
contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. All derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair
value is negative. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
income statement.

Derivative transactions are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

1.11 Valuation of securities and derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market
prices at the valuation date without any deduction for estimated future
selling costs. Financial assets are priced at current bid prices while
financial liabilities are priced at current ask prices. For unlisted securities
and where the market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group
estimates fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

1.12 Investment properties

Land and/or buildings which are owned and/or held under a leasehold
interest for long-term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation, and
that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as
investment property. When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased under finance
leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.12 Investment properties (Continued)

When a property is transferred to investment property following a change
in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the
carrying amount of the property immediately prior to the transfer and its
fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the bank premises revaluation reserve in
accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”.
However, a revaluation increase is recognised as income only to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense. Decreases are first set off against increases on
previous valuations of the same asset and thereafter are debited to the
consolidated income statement. Upon disposal of the property, the
relevant portion of the bank premises revaluation reserve is released and
transferred from the bank premises revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.

When an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost.

1.13 Other properties and equipment
(a)  Premises

Premises represent those properties held for own use and are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Where the land and building elements of the leasehold
properties held for own use can be allocated reliably at the
inception of the lease, the land element is accounted for as finance
lease if the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership to the leasee. As such, any leasehold land
premiums for acquiring the land leases, or other lease payments,
are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease or where there is impairment, the
impairment is charged to the income statement. Any buildings
which are situated on such land leases are presented as part of
premises. Where the land and building elements of the leasehold
properties cannot be allocated reliably at the inception of the lease,
the land and building elements are treated as a finance lease and
classified as premises.

Depreciation of premises is calculated on a straight line basis to
write off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired terms of the
leases.

- Building and improvements thereto are depreciated over the
lesser of 40 years or the remaining estimated useful life.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.13 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
(b)  Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a reducing
balance basis to write off the assets over their estimated useful
lives, at annual rates ranging from 10% to 30%.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

(c)  Right of use assets

Details on right of use assets are set out in Note 1.22.

1.14 Impairment of other assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

1.15 Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as “Other accounts” under
“Advances and other accounts” and the relevant loans are derecognised.
The repossessed assets are measured at the minimum of the amount of the
related loans and advances, carrying amount and net realisable value.

1.16 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.16 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equity securities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items such as equity securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

1.17 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the consolidated income statement
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.17 Income tax (Continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing deductible
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.18 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance
contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. As a
general guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk as the
possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event
that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur.

(@) Recognition and measurement

The Group issues various classes of insurance contract including
accident and health, motor vehicles, ships, goods in transit, property
damage, employees’ compensation, general liability and pecuniary
loss. Risks under these insurance policies usually cover one year
duration.

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned
premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired
risks at the end of the reporting period is reported as the unearned
premium liability.  Premiums are shown before deduction of
commission and are net of duties levied on premiums.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred. They include direct and indirect
claims settlement costs and arise from events that have occurred up
to the end of the reporting period even if they have not yet been
reported to the Group. Liabilities for unpaid claims are separately
analysed by class of business. They are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to the Group and statistical
techniques for the claims incurred but not reported.

(b) Outstanding claims

Outstanding claims are assessed by reviewing individual claims and
include an estimate for claims incurred but not reported at the end of
reporting date. This provision, although not capable of precise
assessment, has been made in the light of available information and
after taking into account direct claims handling expenses and
possible recoveries from other parties. Indirect expenses relating to
the general administration of claims are not included as part of
outstanding claims.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported at the end of
reporting date is made based on historical experience.

Claims recoverable from reinsurers are included as an asset at the
end of reporting date.

(¢) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and discounts that vary with and are related to securing
new contracts and renewing existing contracts are capitalised as
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when insured.
The DAC is subsequently amortised over the terms of the insurance
policies as premium is earned.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.18 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d) Liability adequacy test

)

()

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy test is
performed to ensure the unearned premium reserves net of related
DAC assets are sufficient to cover the contract liabilities. In
performing this test, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and maintenance (administration)
expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such
liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the
income statement and a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision) is established.

Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts held by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by the
Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Insurance
contracts entered into by the Group under which the contract holder
is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance
contracts.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurers’ share of insurance
contracts. These assets consist of short-term balances due from
reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Premiums ceded and claims reimbursed
are presented on a gross basis.

The Group assesses the reinsurers’ share of insurance contracts for
impairment on an annual basis. If there is objective evidence that the
reinsurers’ share of insurance contracts is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount of the insurance contracts to its
recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement.

Receivables and payables related insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include
amounts due to and from agents, brokers and insurance contract
holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the insurance
receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.19 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligation as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as interest expense.

1.20 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (“the
holder”) for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is
initially recognised as deferred income in the financial statements on the
date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of
the amount determined in accordance with Note 1.19 and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes
in the liability relating to financial guarantees are recognised in the
income statement.

1.21 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term leave entitlements and long-term
staff retirement benefits as follows:

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
recognised when the absences occur.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Retirement benefits

The Group operates six staff retirement schemes. The assets of these
schemes are all held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to schemes with defined contribution
arrangements and the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) schemes
are expensed as incurred.

Annual contributions to the retirement benefit schemes with defined
benefit arrangements are determined based on periodic valuations of
the assets and liabilities of such schemes by qualified actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost of
providing retirement benefits is charged to the consolidated income
statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries. The
defined benefit obligation is measured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government
securities which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related liabilities.

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit schemes are recognised
in other comprehensive income and reflected immediately in retained
earnings.

1.22 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is a lessee under operating leases, leased assets mainly
include properties and equipment. A right of use asset and a
corresponding lease liability are recognised on the statement of financial
position when the leased asset is available for use. These asset and
liability are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

The right of use asset and the lease liability are to be included in the
statement of financial position as “Other properties and equipment” and
“Other accounts and accruals” respectively.

The right of use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight line
basis.

Each lease payment is allocated between the lease liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to the income statement as interest
expense over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability for each period.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a straight
line basis as rental expense in the income statement. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.22 Operating leases (Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2019, rentals applicable to such operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased out
mainly include properties and equipment and are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies except where the asset
is classified as investment property. Rental income (net of any incentives
given to lessees) is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

1.23 Hire purchase contracts and finance leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee are classified as finance leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing
the net investment in the lease is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as “Advances and other accounts”. The net
investment represents the total rentals receivable under hire purchase
contracts and finance leases less unearned finance income. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 1.7. Finance income implicit in the rental receivable is
credited to the consolidated income statement over the lease period or
hire period so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding for each accounting period.

1.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations. Information provided to the Group's most senior executive
management to make decisions about allocating resources and assessing
performance of operating segments is measured in accordance with
HKFRSs.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity within three months from the
date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks, treasury bills and
certificates of deposit that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Balances from banks, which form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management, are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

1.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a related party is a person
or entity that is related to the Group.

(&) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.26 Related parties (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their
dealings with the entity.

1.27 Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a
group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the
non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions
to this measurement policy so far as the consolidated financial statements
of the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in Note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in
applying accounting policy

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.1 Impairment of financial assets

The Group reviews its credit portfolios to assess impairment at least on a
quarterly basis. The measurement of impairment losses across all
categories of credit asset requires judgment, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number
of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

2.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values, they
are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the department that created them to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management
to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors would
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

2.3 Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis. The valuation has considered a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefit by using the asset or by selling it to another
market participant who will use the asset in its highest and best use.
The fair values are assessed based on the capitalisation of the net income
for the properties using Investment Method of Valuation. The contractual
rental income and the expected future market rental income after
allowing for outgoings and maintenance requirements are capitalised at
observed market yields. The principal assumptions underlying the
estimation of market value are those related to: the receipt of contractual
rentals; expected future market rentals; void periods; maintenance
requirements; and observed market yields.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in
applying accounting policy (Continued)

2.3 Estimate of fair value of investment properties (Continued)

In addition, the valuations are also assessed by reference to comparable
market transactions as reported in the relevant market at similar locations.
Appropriate adjustments have been made on the values of the subject
properties for relevant factors, such as location difference, building age,
time of transaction, shop frontage and pedestrian flow, etc.

Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the fair
value of investment properties.

2.4 Income tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax
destination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially estimated, such difference will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax in the period during which such a determination is
made.

The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future.

In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or more
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result in
revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in
applying accounting policy (Continued)

2.5 Ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance
contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under
insurance contracts is one of the Group's critical accounting estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of loss
events that have been incurred but not reported* ("IBNR") to the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The estimation of IBNR claims is
generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of
the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim events is available. IBNR claims may not be
apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gives rise to
the claim has happened.

Estimation of the ultimate cost of certain liability claims can be a
complex process. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be
considered in the estimating of the liability that the Group will ultimately
pay for such claims. In particular, the claims arising from the employees’
compensation and other liability policies can be longer in tail and
difficult to estimate. The Group has appointed an independent actuary to
estimate the claim liabilities using established actuarial methodologies.
The methodologies are statistical in nature and can be affected by various
factors. The more significant factors that can affect the reliability of the
liability estimation include jurisprudence that can broaden the intent and
scope coverage of the protections offered in the insurance contracts
issued by the Group, the extent to which actual claim results differ from
historical experience and the time lag between the occurrence of the
event and the report of such claim to the Group.

2.6 Staff retirement scheme

Actuarial assumptions are made in valuing future pension obligations as
set out in Note 15. There is uncertainty that these assumptions will hold
true in the future. They are reviewed periodically and are updated where
necessary.
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3 Bank Level Statement of Financial Position

—O0—M —O—/N\
2019 2018
Bl BETIT AT
Note HK$’000 HKS$’000
BE Assets
BEFERE -~ FEFER K Cash, balances and placements with
=52 and loans and advances to banks 65,579,411 85,860,702
TR T B Derivative financial instruments 588,286 487,673
J\/\IIZTE ﬁuf,f/\?a SHE> Financial assets at fair value through
ERE profit or loss 6,401,863 6,288,001
”"%T’L*‘ Investments in securities 71,301,044 47,314,629
BN HATREIE Advances and other accounts 187,555,735 164,604,243
Bﬁ)% N\ E W Interests in subsidiaries 22 923,147 823,147
HEEEIE LS Interests in jointly controlled entities 22,000 22,000
Hﬁ 2\ EIRES Interests in associates 1,236,600 1,236,600
=t /ES Investment properties 3,227,950 3,331,634
?HE + AL Interests in leasehold land 112,776 116,006
ﬁﬁﬂ%%)jﬁ S Other properties and equipment 1,466,316 1,190,427
u] [ Y f I8 Tax recoverable 783 614
PEIEFIE & 7 Deferred tax assets 27,247 40,151
SIEHHEEE Assets classified as held for sale - 1,980
B Total assets 338,443,158 311,317,807
=Vt Liabilities
[E FEFK Deposits and balances from banks 27,238,432 35,401,573
REEE TN afE Trading liabilities 309,136 -
?ﬁi(ﬁﬁéiﬁ Derivative financial instruments 393,553 769,341
B RFER Deposits from customers 244,711,860 222,436,199
éé?—frZﬁ?jzaé Certificates of deposit issued 3,725,259 7,624,032
BT 1B EEIA Subordinated debts issued 3,110,591 3,128,160
BRI Current taxation 673,054 205,360
YEIEFIE & (& Deferred tax liabilities 27,620 -
H A HEIE K TR Other accounts and accruals 14,261,581 3,954,052
=T Total liabilities 294,451,086 273,518,717
s Equity
s A Share capital 1,160,951 1,160,951
EEHE Reserves 34 35,122,760 32,064,909
Total equity attributable to
i B A AT R S A AT shareholders of the Bank 36,283,711 33,225,860
BIMELS T Additional equity instruments 7,708,361 4,573,230
MRS KA Total equity 43,992,072 37,799,090
T 45 S B (B AR Total equity and liabilities 338,443,158 311,317,807
EN _OZ—OF=H -+ HEBES S miE L Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
ﬁﬁ March 2020.
K5 EEE Zhu Qi Chairman
TR BRI TIEAEE Hong Bo Director and Chief Executive Officer
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4 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group recognises that
taking risk is core to its financial business and the operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group has established policies and procedures for the identification,
measurement, control and monitoring of the inherent risk of the
operations. The most important risks are credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risks. The adequacy and effectiveness of risk
management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed by the
Management Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Management
Committee”). The Internal Audit Department also performs regular audits
to ensure compliance with policies and procedures.

4.1 Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that an
obligor (including guarantor) or a counterparty will cause a financial loss
for the Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise
principally from loans and advances, debt securities, derivative financial
instruments, treasury bills, and other on-balance sheet exposures to
counterparties in the Group’s asset portfolio. There is also credit risk in
off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan commitments.
Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of a particular
industry segment, could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has established credit policies that govern credit extension
criteria, credit approval, review and monitoring processes, the internal
credit rating system and impairment assessment processes. The Group’s
credit risk management and control are centralised in Credit Management
Department which reports to the Credit Committee and Management
Committee regularly. The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility
for the effectiveness of credit risk management processes.

(a) Credit risk measurement
(i) Loans and advances

In assessing credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks
and other counterparties, effective systems are adopted for measurement
and monitoring of the credit risk as part of the credit assessment process.
The Group’s credit grading system, which in general, takes into account
the underlying credit-worthiness of the counterparties, including the
financial strengths of the guarantors (as the case may be), collateral
pledged and the risk of specific transactions, allows differentiation and
management of credit risk for asset portfolios of respective business
units.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(a) Credit risk measurement (Continued)
(ii) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities, external ratings from recognised external credit
assessment institutions are used for assessing and managing credit risk
exposures. The investments in these securities allow the Group to achieve
an appropriate level of returns commensurate with the risks and to
maintain a readily available source of funding at the same time.

(iii) Credit related commitments

The Group has issued credit related commitments including guarantees
and letters of credit. The primary purpose of these instruments is to
ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. These
instruments represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third
parties. These instruments carry similar level of the same credit risk as
loans.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorised
facility limits in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With
respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total
unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The
Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever
they are identified, in particular, to individual counterparties and groups,
and to industries and countries.

To avoid concentration risk, credit exposures to individual customers,
counterparties and industry sectors are carefully managed and monitored
by the use of limits. All credit risk limits are approved by the
Management Committee. The Management Committee is also
responsible for the review and approval of the largest credit exposures
and portfolio management of risk concentrations. Approval authorities
are delegated to the Group’s Credit Committee and other lending officers.
Actual credit exposures, including on- and off-balance sheet exposures,
limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by the
Credit Management Department by keeping a central liability record for
each group of related counterparties and are subject to checks by the
internal audit function.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted by
sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily
delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward foreign
exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

Some specific control and risk mitigation measures are outlined below:

(i) Collateral

The Group seeks to obtain collateral to mitigate credit risk to an
acceptable level. All credit decisions, whether or not secured by
collateral, are based on counterparties’ repayment capacity. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal types of collateral in
credit risk mitigation include:

- Mortgages over residential properties and other properties;

- Charges over business assets such as cash deposits, premises,
machineries, inventory and accounts receivable; and

- Charges over financial instruments such as equities, debt securities
and life insurance policies.

At 31 December 2019, the lower of gross loan amount and the
estimated fair value of the collateral and other credit enhancements
held against it amounted to HK$73,313,125,000 (2018:
HK$66,634,982,000).

At 31 December 2019, the lower of gross credit-impaired loan amount
and the estimated fair value of the collateral and other credit
enhancements held against it amounted to HK$143,497,000 (2018:
HK$461,324,000).

The Group has established policies to govern the determination of
eligibility of assets taken as collateral for credit risk mitigation. In
order for an asset to be considered as effective risk mitigation, the
market value of the asset should be readily determinable or can be
reasonably established. The asset is marketable and there exists a
readily available secondary market for disposal of the asset. In
addition, the Group is able to secure control over the asset if
necessary. The collateral is revalued periodically ranging from daily to
annually, depending on the type of collateral. As for those past due
exposures, the main types of collateral held are cash deposits and
properties.

(if) Master netting agreements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering
into master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it
undertakes a significant volume of transactions. Master netting
arrangements do not generally result in an offset of the assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position, as transactions are
usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk associated
with favourable contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement
to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all amounts with the
counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(iii) Derivatives

The principal derivatives used by the Group are interest and foreign
exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative positions have been
entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these and other
trading positions. The Management Committee places trading limits
on the level of exposure that can be taken in relation to both overnight
and intra-day market positions. With the exception of specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures associated
with these derivatives are normally offset by entering into
counterbalancing positions, thereby controlling the variability in the
net cash amounts required to liquidate market positions. Given the
purpose for entering into such derivative transaction, collateral or
other security is not usually obtained for credit risk exposures on these
instruments, except where the Group requires margin deposits from
counterparties.

Under the terms of the Group’s current collateral obligations under
derivative contracts, it is estimated the Group would not be required to
post additional collateral in the event of one or two notch downgrade in
the Group’s credit rating based on the positions as at 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

(c) Impairment allowance policies

ECL for assets are calculated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The calculation of ECL takes into account
the stages, the cash flow types and other risk parameters to make it an
unbiased and probability weighted average by evaluating a range of
possible  outcomes incorporating  forecasted = macroeconomic
conditions.

The Group defines the impairment assessment rules by segment to
estimate future cash flows individually or by the Rule-based Approach.

Assets are divided into several segment, including Corporate,
Non-Mortgage Retail, Credit Card, Mortgage Loans, Bank, Sovereign
and Specialised Lending. Each segment would have their risk
parameters (i.e. probability of default “PD”, loss given default “LGD”,
expected drawdown, prepayment and period of exposure).

The ECL for non-retail segment at Stage 3 and the ECL for retail
segment with exposure at default not less than HK$ 50 million at Stage
3 are determined on an individual basis using a discounted cashflow
methodology. The expected future cash flows are based on the credit
risk estimates as at the reporting date, reflecting reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of future recoveries and
expected future receipts of interest. Collateral is taken into account if it
is likely that the recovery of the outstanding amount will include
realisation of collateral based on its estimated fair value of collateral at
the time of expected realisation, less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral. The cashflows are discounted at a reasonable approximation
of the effective interest rate.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(c) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)

Ho At oy BB R e B B Ry 7 A B AS Other segments would be assessed by Rule-based Approach by
HEAEERESYEMSHNENE & RE computing the present value of difference between the contractual cash
NEHFEHH B AR SR EEITHR flow due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
B - BE{E A F4rEss » TEHEH(E &35 %% DL flows that the Group expects to receive. Except individual card
EREmE > mE AR THRE & segment, ECL would be calculated in account level, while accounts
MR 45 JE 0L By JE B Ry (B E AT EF 4~ TR 4R 5T under individual card segment would be grouped based on similar risk
-~ EHR R eH - & 4R & TE 2 B characteristic (i.e. current rating, original rating, day past due). Both
EREEEEBFRITHE BITHRE - B the contractual cash flow and expected cash flow would be discounted
HEFEHR SR Lo HELYSH AR by effective interest rate to present value. For each expected cash flow,
HA R B E L E R E the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default
would be accessed.

EEoE=HBEUNLBTFEHEGEERZL - Assets are classified into three Stages to reflect the expected credit
{8 P B 0y BB E 2R BT AE loss. Impairment allowance of each stage is calculated based on the
EABRAERMELYE G RIENEESSTE - product of probability of default, loss given default and exposure at
EEE T EYBrESEE > REFEBK H KK default. The Group will account for expected credit losses within the
+ZEANNTEIEEELET AE —E next 12 months as Stage 1 when those financial instruments are first
By o 7 HAF ¥ 6 S 18 IR E & E e AR recognised; and to recognise full lifetime expected credit losses as
EHAEE s BEHELHHHEEELAEA AES Stage 2 when there have been significant increases in credit risk since
T EHEEEE R BB > g E initial recognition. Full lifetime expected credit losses will also be
2HTEIEEEAERN BE =R - HJE recognised as Stage 3 if objective evidence of impairment occurred and
=1 ) S F R A B SR = PR ER e BB E YR interest accrual will then be net of the impairment amount of
HE&% - associated Stage 3 financial assets.
EEREAKEEFANE _BEEE/AY Significant increases in credit risk for Stage 2 assets is determined by
0 SR B - v RERBEHE - X segment, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, delinquency and
K A5 B & E S E credit asset classification.
TRINIEAEB N EETFRAEFEEE The table below shows the relationship between the Group’s internal
4 B 2 R HY R AR - credit rating and credit asset classification.
B 1S B aE 4k & & & & 4l
Internal credit rating Credit asset classification
R 1-23 &
Grades 1-23 Pass
&k 7l 24 BERE
Grade 24 Special Mention
& Al 25 KR
Grade 25 Substandard
R 26 it
Grade 26 Doubtful
Al 27 &5 18
Grade 27 Loss

& EHEEBEANEAEBITEREMT “Pass” represents credit assets where the obligor is current in meeting
WEEEE FARN2BEEBEAERAESD its repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is
# & R Rk BE R - not in doubt.
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Stage Decision Rules

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(c) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)

“Special Mention” represents credit assets where the obligor is
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position.
Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could occur if adverse
conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents credit assets where the obligor displays a
definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents credit assets where collection in full is
improbable and the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or
interest, taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents credit assets which are considered uncollectible after
all collection options (such as the realisation of collateral or the
institution of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.

The decision rules for stage allocation are as follows:

FlEE - BEAREBERERIKRS @ K

- é?ﬂﬂﬁ?@ﬁﬁfagﬁtzﬁﬁ/\l
- EAIAEEE
- Lﬁ@f#ﬁ’)ﬁ(ﬂog

T2 M B
ERN8E23 2 H B ¥ 6L LLAR T [

P D2 34f 5 A

Stage 1 - New accounts with Special Mention status; or
- Current internal credit rating is between 1 to 7; or
- Current internal credit rating is between 8 to 23 with less than 3 notches downgrade since origination; and

- Less than 30 days past due

R - ”ﬁ“UE’JWﬁB{*E?Z&%M'
- EAIAEEE
AR K30 E 90 H
Stage 2 - Current internal credit rating is 24; or

FEF R A8 E 23 [ H B W 46 B 58 LA SR N RE 3R E LA | 5 B

Current internal credit rating is between 8 to 23 with 3 or more notches downgrade since origination; or

- 30to 90 days past due

FoEE - EAIAEE SRR 2SE2TZM K

- I EFGE B0 H

Stage 3 - Current internal credit rating is between 25 to 27; or

- More than 90 days past due

RIBFGET T > AEEETIL T —HRINHEA
5 5] P9 B0 2 49 SR A0 K 5 (E B AR Y
FBEERERE AEEFHELERZEEK
WERaH 7 =M% & > BN > ARk
B-mErEHEZE gl Em#& LR
e TR = mAVEIE > EAEEENEL
¥ 77 B 80O IR 2R HY TH I R A B 1 A 49 B4
RABELBRER - 5 LA T ELGRAR
MEGBE R/ HEREEEEBAELD
WA -

Based on statistical approaches, the Group has came up with a series of
macroeconomic factors that exhibit significant correlation with the
Group's internal default rates and collateral value. The Group designs
three scenarios with these macroeconomic factors, namely optimistic,
base and pessimistic. The Risk Management Committee members put
forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence, enabling
the Group to generate forecasts of macroeconomic factors and the
forward-looking PD and LGD. These forward-looking PD and LGD
are then used as input parameters in the expected credit loss model.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

enhancements

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

or other credit

—O—n ZO—N
2019 2018
BEETT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Balances and placements with and loans

EEZE35@5a =14 and advances to banks 65,173,679 85,552,951
TSR T A Derivative financial instruments 588,286 487,673

DI EESEAERIES Financial assets at fair value through
LREEE profit or loss 6,381,163 6,517,668
SBAE Investment in securities 71,005,131 46,987,585
B HAMETE Advances and other accounts 186,531,994 165,267,211
(S EHIE Credit commitments 39,704,324 40,743,965
369,384,577 345,557,053

(e) CIEHEABFEHEERFEI HZ
SR EH T A TR

(i) MRIA/ 7R LEEH

applied

(1) Gross carrying/notional amount

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 are

E—FEE E B FE=RE =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HEETIT HEETIT HEETIT HEETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—O—n4E 2019
Balances and placements with
and loans and advances to
[EIFEFR &K banks
- FEERSNACAYIEE GERE1T) - at amortised cost (Note 17) 64,055,004 - - 64,055,004
- I EESE A ZEM ST - at fair value through other
Uz comprehensive income* 1,120,892 - - 1,120,892
B85 Debt securities
- FEERSNACATIEE GERE 20) - at amortised cost (Note 20) 719,389 - 173,188 892,577
- I EESE A ZEM ST - at fair value through other
Uz comprehensive income* 70,262,123 - 742,025 71,004,148
EER R HAMETE Advances and other accounts
- FRHERNR AR - at amortised cost* 168,481,059 8,083,595 1,020,748 177,585,402
- I EESE A ZEM ST - at fair value through other
U g5+ comprehensive income*" 8,860,385 - - 8,860,385
Loan commitments and
UK B S RiERe Y financial guarantee contracts” 10,565,876 166,956 62,189 10,795,021
324,064,728 8,250,551 1,998,150 334,313,429
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 are
applied (Continued)

(i) Gross carrying/notional amount (Continued)

T IR B =PEEE =
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BTT BT BETT BT
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—O—)\UE 2018
Balances and placements with
and loans and advances to
[FISEFIRU &K banks
- FRERSNACARTIE GERE 17) - at amortised cost (Note 17) 69,575,202 - - 69,575,202
- DI EESEAEM 2T - at fair value through other
25+ comprehensive income* 16,009,397 - - 16,009,397
(Ve e Debt securities
- PRGNV ARTIEE GERE 20) - at amortised cost (Note 20) 624,271 - 197,624 821,895
- DA EESEA KA 2T - at fair value through other
U2 comprehensive income* 46,352,313 - 746,287 47,098,600
EER HAMETE Advances and other accounts
- FEREN AR AT HE - at amortised cost” 148,136,606 7,093,751 917,516 156,147,873
- DA EESEA KA 2T - at fair value through other
gatid comprehensive income** 5,281,521 2,556,201 - 7,837,722
Loan commitments and
UK B SR a4 financial guarantee contracts” 9,383,765 219,863 22,923 9,626,551
295,363,075 9,869,815 1,884,350 307,117,240

*OBLIEHEE T o MR A AR R R BE T (T RC(E

NP EENEEREN M EE#
B R AR o DRI BB i R R R th IR Y

HWMHEANE -

ARl M BABTEEMBRELEAZE 9

SRREMRENEH > RHILHEM B R
21 K 36 RS HEAEFRAE -
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For the purposes of this disclosure, the gross carrying amounts
represent the amortised cost of financial assets, before adjusting
for any impairment allowances and changes in fair value, and
therefore may not agree with those shown in notes to the
financial statements.

The amounts represent those items that are subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 and therefore do not
agree with those shown in Notes 21 and 36 to the financial
statements.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment

Vi =) requirements of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)
(i) JRIEAEM (i) Impairment allowances
F—FEE EIERE F=FEE =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—O—n&E 2019
Balances and placements with
and loans and advances to
[ESEF IR &K banks
- YN ATME GERE 17) - at amortised cost (Note 17) 2,217) - - 2,217)
- DA EERE A A 2 - at fair value through other
Ugsn comprehensive income” (133) - - (133)
(EtEEEes Debt securities
- TSR AT ME FEFE 20) - at amortised cost (Note 20) 1,315) - (165,407) (166,722)
- DA EERE A A 21 - at fair value through other
ga comprehensive income” (13,399) - (742,840) (756,239)
B H RIS Advances and other accounts
- PRGNV ARTIE GERE 21) - at amortised cost (Note 21) (158,466) (72,076) (887,295) 1,117,837)
- DA EERE A A 2 - at fair value through other
Ugsn comprehensive income” (822) - - (822)
Loan commitments and
EFUKEE M RliE R A4y financial guarantee contracts
GHEE 31) (Note 31) (15,424) 4,742) (31,774) (51,940)
(191,776) (76,818) (1,827,316)  (2,095,910)
—O—)\&E 2018
Balances and placements with
and loans and advances to
[FEZEFIU SRR banks
- PN ATME EERE 17) - at amortised cost (Note 17) (31,648) - - (31,648)
- PAASHEESE A A 2 - at fair value through other
Y zan comprehensive income” (1,688) - - (1,688)
B 75 Debt securities
- FEEERAYIAE (X2 20) - atamortised cost (Note 20) (864) - (141,540) (142,404)
- DIV EEREA R M 2T - at fair value through other
Y zan comprehensive income” (15,751) - (580,975) (596,726)
SR HAMRRTH Advances and other accounts
- PRGNV ARTIEE GERE 21) - at amortised cost (Note 21) (122,171) (55,691) (550,701) (728,563)
- DIV EEREAE M 2T - at fair value through other
Ugsn comprehensive income” (118) (42,287) - (42,405)
Loan commitments and
EEOREE B SRR R E Y financial guarantee contracts
GEEE 3D (Note 31) (12,906) (6,084) (15,960) (34,950)
(185,146)  (104,062) (1,289,176)  (1,578,384)

N REFEEMEELEM BRI RANLLL Y E
1B F1 R © L 6K {E 8 1 R BB 15 < mi R E 6
HESRIM A &M% FEENREE
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These financial assets are measured at fair value on the statement
of financial position. The corresponding impairment allowances
are recognised in financial asset revaluation reserve without
reducing the carrying amounts of these assets.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9
are applied (Continued)

(i) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances

N EEE) during the year
- FEEEE RS RR 2 B - Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks at amortised
1= cost
FEERRE fEERE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
o124 bl 124 SB=REE =i
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RIS RIS HRTHISEAR RTS8
Gross  JB{EEMH Gross  JRIEEEH Gross  JRIEEEH Gross ELEG
carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment
amount  allowances es es allowances
BETT  ARTT BETT  ABBTT BETT  ABBTT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
RZO—h&#E—B—H At 1 January 2019 69,575,202 (31,648) - - 69,575,202 (31,648)
oS XS Pl Transfers between Stages:
- HE P R - Transfers from Stage 1 R R R
- HHES P - Transfers from Stage 2 - - _
- HHEE =P P - Transfers from Stage 3 - - -
el Changes in credit risk 19,401 - - - 19,401
Net assets recognised/
FAERERR/(HE L FERD) (derecognised) (5,500,387) 8,758 - - (5,500,387) 8,758
Changes in models/risk
AR R S D) parameters 1,272 - - R 1272
FE 2 2240 Exchange difference (19,811) - - (19,811)
WoO— U4+ —"H=+—H At31 December 2019 64,055,004 (2,217) - - 64,055,004 (2,217)
AU e P2 ] Net reversal to income statement
(R EFEUR BT MR AR TE) (excluding recoveries) 29,431 29,431
W ElE AR AR TE Recoveries
Net reversal to income statement
PRUGERFFHRE GERE 12) (Note 12) 29,431 29,431
HoO—/\E—H—H At 1 January 2018 63,876,199 (16,977) - - 63,876,199 (16,977)
RS i freyigas Transfers between Stages:
- AP - Transfers from Stage 1 - - -
- P P R - Transfers from Stage 2 - - -
- 5 =P - Transfers from Stage 3 R R B
IE= e il Changes in credit risk 4,174 - - - 4,174
Net assets recognised/
TR RS/ (45 1 HERT) (derecognised) 5,949,399 (2,148) - - 5,949,399 (2,148)
LR/ 2 BT Changes in models/risk parameters (16,697) - - - (16,697)
FE L7240 Exchange difference (250,396) - - (250,396)
BZO—/\UE+=H=+—H At31 December 2018 69,575,202 (31,648) - - 69,575,202 (31,648)
AU B Net charge to income statement
(R BRI E EMERIRTE) (excluding recoveries) (14,671) (14,671)
U ElE R AR T Recoveries
Net charge to income statement
PG T FHEHE GERE 12) (Note 12) (14,671) (14,671)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9

are applied (Continued)

(i) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances

during the year (Continued)

- Debt securities at amortised cost

FHERBE fERRE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
SRR SBbEEE BB aF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RIS RIS HRTHISEAR RS
Gross BHEEE Gross R Gross TR Gross FAEZER
carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount allowances amount allowances
BETT  ABRTT BETT  ABBTT BETT  ABBTT BETTT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R=O—h&E—B—H At 1 January 2019 624,271 (864) - 197,624  (141,540) 821,895 (142,404)
P EE T - Transfers between Stages:
- HISE— PR R - Transfers from Stage 1 - - _
- EHEE PR - Transfers from Stage 2 - R R
- S =P - Transfers from Stage 3 - R R
(EEE R EE) Changes in credit risk 397 - - (34,109) - (33,712)
Net assets recognised/
P AEHERR/ (4R L RERR (derecognised) 102,367 92) - (23,424) 8,512 78,943 8,420
Changes in models/risk
parameters (756) - - - (756)
Amortisation of discount/premium (342) - - - (342)
Unwind of discount on
TR E HE T B (B [ impairment allowances
(FEHE 5) (Note 5) - - 1,730 - 1,730
[ R A Exchange difference (6,907) - - (1,012) (7,919)
P O—EFH=+—H At31 December 2019 719,389 (1,315) - 173,188 (165,407) 892,577 (166,722)
Uz 2 PR Net charge to income statement
(R E A IETE) (excluding recoveries) @s1) (25,597) (26,048)
[lod 1 ok (55 3 Recoveries 4,167 4,167
AU g e T Net charge to income statement
(352 12) (Note 12) (451) (21,430) (21,881)
HoO—/\HE—H—H At 1 January 2018 1,336,430 (2,183) 78,050 (122) - 1,414,480 (2,305)
e ER T Transfers between Stages:
- PR - Transfers from Stage 1 (152,378) 229 - 152,378 (229) -
- - Transfers from Stage 2 (78,050) 122 78,050 (122 -
- = - Transfers from Stage 3 - - -
(EEE ST, Changes in credit risk 4) - - (156,570) - (156,574)
Net assets recognised/
4 (derecognised) (556,801) 1,048 - (33,467), 15,381 (590,268) 16,429
LT/ pli)] Changes in models/risk parameters 46 - - - 46
BT Amortisation of discount/premium (1,012) - - 1,633 621
FE R E4H Exchange difference (1,968) - - (970) (2,938)
MoO—/\UE+"H=+—H At31] December 2018 624,271 (864) - 197,624 (141,540) 821,895 (142,404)
Net reversal/(charge) to income
ULz 2 R O/ (5 ) statement (excluding
(CFaE E T S EETE) recoveries) 1,090 (141,189) (140,099)
Uk a| E iR TE Recoveries 10,892 10,892
AU e P2 SR [ (F 1) Net reversal/(charge) to income
(FFFE 12) statement (Note 12) 1,090 (130,297) (129,207)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9

are applied (Continued)

(iii) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances

during the year (Continued)

- Advances and other accounts at amortised cost

RIH
FEEERE fERRE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
SRR ol 2 BB Aasft
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
NRETRER NRETRER NRET4RER i
Gross  JB{EEM Gross  JRIEEEH Gross  JRIEEEH Gross RIS
carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment
amount  allowances 1l es 1l es amount allowances
BETIT  B¥TT BT BN TT BT AN TT EETT AE¥TT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R=O—h&E—BF—H At 1 January 2019 148,136,606 (122,171) 7,093,751 (55,691) 917,516 (550,701) 156,147,873 (728,563)
P EE T - Transfers between Stages:
- P - Transfers from Stage 1 (2,971,222) 5,997 2,813,990 (5,365) 157,232 (632) -
- FHEE P ER - Transfers from Stage 2 2,753,283 (9,467) (2,768,952) 12,460 15,669 (2,993) -
- FHES =P R - Transfers from Stage 3 3,222 (93) 181 ) (3,403) 95 -
(EEE R EE) Changes in credit risk 13,709 - (15,815) - (357,695) - (359,801)
Net assets recognised/
TR/ (BRI TERR) (derecognised) 21,173,367 (47,550) 964,556 (7,664) (53,794) 1,941 22,084,129 (53,273)
Changes in models/risk
TR/ g 22 B S Y parameters 1,109 - 1 - (2,637) - (1,527)
PR Amounts written off - (5,546) 5,546 (5,546) 5,546
Unwind of discount on
TR E SE T B (B [ impairment allowances
(GEHE 5) (Note 5) - - 19,781 - 19,781
P 7%E Exchange difference (614,197) (19,931) (6,926) (641,054)
RO—NEFH=+—H At31 December 2019 168,481,059 (158,466) 8,083,595 (72,076) 1,020,748 (887,295) 177,585,402 (1,117,837)
S 2 TR Net charge to income statement
(RE BRI EEMERIETER) (excluding recoveries) (32,732) (23,478) (358,391) (414,601)
W BRI Recoveries 44,306 44,306
AU SR Net charge to income statement
(5FFE 12) (Note 12) (32,732) (23,478) (314,085) (370,295)
Bo=O—/\F—A—H At 1 January 2018 139,391,873 (231,122) 9,987,201 (131,896) 924,173 (338,036) 150,303,247 (701,054)
RS i freyigas Transfers between Stages:
- HE e - Transfers from Stage 1 (5,393,114) 41,597 4,972,629 (33,133) 420,485 (8,464) -
BNCEE e - Transfers from Stage 2 4,089,119 (1,104) (4,096,415) 1,668 7,296 (564) -
- HHES = - Transfers from Stage 3 1,134 12) 32,296 (767) (33.430) 779 )
(EERGES) Changes in credit risk 9,076 - (5.389) -1 (390,387) - (386,700)
Net assets recognised/
TRE NS/ (AX I EHESD) (derecognised) 10,990,142 68,526 (3,745,967) 110,362 (284,576) 69,415 6,959,599 248,303
TERY/ B Changes in models/risk parameters 9,132) - 3,464 R (6,111 R (11,779)
TR Amounts written off - (110,395) 110,395 (110,395) 110,395
Unwind of discount on
ek R TR ([ impairment allowances
(515 5) (Note 5) - - 12,272 - 12,272
PR 7% Exchange difference (942,548) (55,993) (6,037) (1,004,578)
MoO—/\4E+"H=+—H At31 December 2018 148,136,606 (122,171) 7,093,751 (55,691) 917,516  (550,701) 156,147,873 (728,563)
Net reversal/(charge) to income
AU e P2 SR [ (F 1) statement (excluding
(R EFEEl AR ETE) recoveries) 68,470 108,437 (327,083) (150,176)
U [El e R TS Recoveries 22,984 22,984
AU e P2 SR [ (F 1) Net reversal/(charge) to income
(352 12) statement (Note 12) 68,470 108,437 (304,099) (127,192)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9

are applied (Continued)

(iii) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances

during the year (Continued)

- Debt securities and other financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income

FEERRE fEERE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
BB SBbEEE BB aF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RIS HRTE 4R EE HRTESAEH RS
Gross BHEEE Gross R Gross TR Gross FAEZER
carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment
amount  allowances 1l es 1l es amount allowances
BETIT  B¥TT BT AT BT BT EETT AE¥TT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
N-_O—h&E—F—H At 1 January 2019 67,643,231 (17,557) 2,556,201 (42,287) 746,287 (580,975) 70,945,719 (640,819)
VS R g Transfers between Stages:
- PR - Transfers from Stage 1 - - -
- I s - Transfers from Stage 2 - - -
- S =P - Transfers from Stage 3 - - - - - -
(EEE T Changes in credit risk 12,306 - - (165,989) - (153,683)
Net assets recognised/
FAERERR/(HE L FERD) (derecognised) 13,409,178 (1,488) (2,556,201) 42,287 - - 10,852,977 40,799
Changes in models/risk
AL/ B S BB parameters - (7,615) - _ (7,615)
HEESHT 1 Amortisation of discount/premium 335,508 - - - 335,508 -
Unwind of discount on
ek (R TR (B [T impairment allowances
(GERE5) (Note 5) - - - 4,124 - 4,124
PR %E Exchange difference (1,144,517) - - (4,262) (1,148,779) -
RO HFE+H=+—H At31 December 2019 80,243,400 (14,354) - 742,025 (742,840) 80,985,425 (757,194)
Net reversal/(charge) to income
UL EE 22 TR B/ (5 ) statement (excluding
(RE BRI EEMERIETE) recoveries) 3,203 42,287 (165,989) (120,499)
YR BT R AR TE Recoveries - - _ _
AU ZEF2 R ]/ (P ) Net reversal/(charge) to income
(1f 12) statement (Note 12) 3,203 42,287 (165,989) (120,499)
MNoO—/\E—H—H At 1 January 2018 62,858,301 (18,046) 1,273,731 (16,563) - - 64,132,032 (34,609)
RS i freyigas Transfers between Stages:
- RS R - Transfers from Stage 1 (3,351,168) 1,475 2,577,500 (1,164) 773,668 (311) -
- HE PR - Transfers from Stage 2 1,273,731 (1,151) (1,273,731) 1,151 - - -
- S =R - Transfers from Stage 3 - - - - - - - -
(EEE ST Changes in credit risk 8,010 - (5,995) - (580,672) - (578,657)
Net assets recognised/
SFEEHE (derecognised) 7,710,274 (8,658) (26,512) 186 (29,202) 8 7,654,560 (8,464)
FEERY/ Changes in models/risk parameters - 813 - (19,902) - - - (19,089)
B Amortisation of discount/premium 77,887 - - - (66) - 77,821 -
B 2740 Exchange difference (925,794) 5,213 1,887 (918,694)
RN_O—/\FE+_H=+—H At31 December 2018 67,643,231 (17,557) 2,556,201 (42,287) 746,287 (580,975) 70,945,719 (640,819)
Net reversal/(charge) to income
UL ES TR B/ () statement (excluding
(R EFEal AR ETE) recoveries) 165 (25,711) (580,664) (606,210)
YR IETE R AR TE Recoveries - _ _
AU e P2 SR [ (F 1) Net reversal/(charge) to income
(GERE 12) statement (Note 12) 165 (25,711) (580,664) (606,210)
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4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

during the year (Continued)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

- Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9
are applied (Continued)

(i) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances

FEERRE fEERE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
SRR SBbEEE BB Aasft
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LR PR LR REEHE LR REEHR LB BB RER
Notional Impairment Notional Impairment Notional Impairment Notional Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount allowances amount allowances
BETT  ARTT BETT  ABBTT BETT  ABBTT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
R=O—h&E—B—H At 1 January 2019 9,383,765 (12,906) 219,863 (6,084) 22,923 (15,960) 9,626,551 (34,950)
VS R g Transfers between Stages:
- P - Transfers from Stage 1 (70,261) 212 70,261 212) - -
- HE PR - Transfers from Stage 2 62,665 (1,654) (62,665) 1,654 - -
- FHES =P R - Transfers from Stage 3 72 (72) -
EEEl s Changes in credit risk 41,626 - 773 - 2,452 - 44,851
Net assets recognised/
TRE NS (A% EHESD) (derecognised) 1,283,125 (33,784) (65,103) 14 37,776 (18,266) 1,255,798 (52,036)
Changes in models/risk
TR/ & BT parameters (8,918) - (887) - - (9,805)
[E =48 Exchange difference (93,418) 4,528 1,562 (87,328)
PZO—JUEFZH=+—H At31 December 2019 10,565,876 (15,424) 166,956 (4,742) 62,189 (31,774) 10,795,021 (51,940)
AU TR F AR )R Net (charge)/reversal to income
(RE BRI EEMERIETE) statement (excluding recoveries) (1,076) (100) (15,814) (16,990)
W ETE BRI TH Recoveries
AU S 2 ()8 2] Net (charge)/reversal to income
(312 12) statement (Note 12) (1,076) (100) (15,814) (16,990)
Bo=O—/\F—A—H At 1 January 2018 24,525,863 (44,253) 399,047 (4,734) 21,368 (12,838) 24,946,278 (61,825)
e ER T Transfers between Stages:
- - Transfers from Stage 1 (128,631) 17,321 105,918 (1,558) 22,713 (15,763) -
- HE PR - Transfers from Stage 2 246,604 (2,540) (246,604) 2,540 - -
- =P - Transfers from Stage 3 3,459 (2,051) 15,512 (9,331) (18,971) 11,382 -
(ERE RS Changes in credit risk 9,444 - 2,060 - 3,144 - 14,648
Net assets recognised/
TRE NS/ (AX I EHESD) (derecognised) (15,046,329) 546 (50,046) 1,908 (1,904) 242 (15,098,279) 2,696
TERY/E fi S s E) Changes in models/risk parameters 8,627 - 3,031 - (2,127) - 9,531
VB R 2% Exchange difference (217,201) (3,964) (283) (221,448)
WoO—/\E+"H=-+—H At31 December 2018 9,383,765 (12,906) 219,863 (6,084) 22,923 (15,960) 9,626,551 (34,950)
iNlrenEQE R Net reversal to income statement
(R EFEEl AR ETE) (excluding recoveries) 18,617 6,999 1,259 26,875
WIETE MBRARTE Recoveries
Net reversal to income statement
A (G 12) (Note 12) 18,617 6,999 1,259 26,875
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(f) Gross balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks by credit quality

The gross balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks are analysed by credit

BERAITOT ¢ asset classification as follows:

E—PEE (=3
Stage _1 Total

AT BT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000

—O—N&E 2019

B R AR At amortised cost

E & Pass 64,055,004 64,055,004

TERE Special Mention - .

R &R Substandard -

et Doubtful -

&5 18 Loss -

IR A48 %H Gross carrying amount 64,055,004 64,055,004

MAREESEAEMEE At fair value through other

e comprehensive income

&k Pass 1,120,892 1,120,892

FRERE Special Mention -

K &R Substandard _

bt Doubtful -

15 18 Loss _

S T 4R AE Gross carrying amount 1,120,892 1,120,892

—O—\& 2018

HEH R AR At amortised cost

&K Pass 69,575,202 69,575,202

FRERE Special Mention -

K&K Substandard _

it Doubtful -

5 18 Loss _

S T 4R EE Gross carrying amount 69,575,202 69,575,202

MAREEEALME2E At fair value through other

e comprehensive income

& 1 Pass 16,009,397 16,009,397

EERRE Special Mention _

R 4R Substandard -

e Doubtful -

&5 18 Loss )

B T 48 4H Gross carrying amount 16,009,397 16,009,397
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 EERE &D
(¢) HABHHAEHEHEZ

BN R AT RE B LN EESE A H M2 EmUzs  The gross debt securities at amortised cost and at fair value through other

D NER S S R A S R ER ST - comprehensive income are analysed by credit asset classification as
follows:

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(g) Gross debt securities by credit quality

o 7244 7214 B=IEEE &E
Stage _1 Stage_Z Stage 3 Total
WM WM T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
—O—n& 2019
R R AR At amortised cost
& Pass 719,389 - - 719,389
TERE Special Mention - _
R &R Substandard - - .
A Doubtful - 21,357 21,357
&5 18 Loss - 151,831 151,831
IR I 48%H Gross carrying amount 719,389 - 173,188 892,577
AR EESEAEMESHE At fair value through other
e comprehensive income
&1 Pass 70,262,123 - - 70,262,123
FRERE Special Mention - R
KK Substandard - _
R Doubtful - _ .
185 15 Loss - 742,025 742,025
R T 4R 4H Gross carrying amount 70,262,123 - 742,025 71,004,148
—O—N\&E 2018
R AR At amortised cost
&g Pass 624,271 - - 624271
EERE Special Mention _ _ )
R Substandard - 44,915 44,915
= Doubtful - 152,709 152,709
&5 18 Loss - _
S T 4R EE Gross carrying amount 624,271 - 197,624 821,895
AR EESEAELMEE At fair value through other
e comprehensive income
& Pass 46,352,313 - - 46,352,313
FERE Special Mention - R
B Substandard - i B}
i Doubtful - 746,287 746,287
5 18 Loss B, _
HE T 45 4R Gross carrying amount 46,352,313 - 746,287 47,098,600
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(g) Gross debt securities by credit quality (Continued)

The debt securities are analysed by external credit assessment institutions’ ratings as follows:

i Gy i (I N
—O—/ ZO—/\
009 2018
BT T AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
AA-Z AAA AA-to AAA 41,361,195 24,259,602
A-Z2 A+ A-to A+ 28,260,283 21,043,938
BBB-%# BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ 4,487,928 4,177,622
(&5 BBB- Lower than BBB- 23,897 53,821
HEEE A Unrated 3,252,991 3,970,270
77,386,294 53,505,253

(h) B RAMAIEHEIEHE
HFE

SRR EMRIA R EE

(h) Gross advances and other accounts by credit quality

The gross advances and other accounts are analysed by credit asset classification as follows:

BESAIAT
S—FEEE  EREE g2 =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETITT AETIT HEETIT HEETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O—h&F 2019
B RATIE At amortised cost
& Pass 168,473,548 7,862,600 5,691 176,341,839
SETHRA L Special Mention 7,511 220,995 18,383 246,889
R & Substandard - - 91,040 91,040
i Doubtful - - 150,140 150,140
&5 18 Loss - - 755,494 755,494
W TH 4B % Gross carrying amount 168,481,059 8,083,595 1,020,748 177,585,402
DU EESEAE M2 E At fair value through other
gy comprehensive income
=R Pass 8,860,385 - - 8,860,385
BERE Special Mention - - - .
R &R Substandard - - - .
e i Doubtful - - . .
&5 18 Loss B} . i )
HE T 45 BH Gross carrying amount 8,860,385 - - 8,860,385
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 EERE &D
() EFRAEAATESEE

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Gross advances and other accounts by credit quality (Continued)

HZ (8
FPEE EFEE B &
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BB BETT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
—O—/\$ 2018
B A TR At amortised cost
= Pass 148,136,600 6,130,085 - 154,266,685
FRERE Special Mention 6 963,666 6,943 970,615
=4 Substandard - - 27,922 27,922
5 Doubtful - - 677,628 677,628
&5 158 Loss - - 205,023 205,023
IR M 4% %E Gross carrying amount 148,136,606 7,093,751 917,516 156,147,873
A EESEAEMEE At fair value through other
U %s comprehensive income
S Pass 5,281,521 2,556,201 - 7,837,722
TERME Special Mention - - - .
&R Substandard - - . B
R Doubtful - - - -
&5 18 Loss . . . )
AR AT 4R R Gross carrying amount 5,281,521 2,556,201 - 7,837,722
ZEEHSUT - The advances to customers are analysed as follows:
E—PBE  EIBE E=FEE =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETIT BETT BETIT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O—h4E 2019
W THI 4B % Gross carrying amount 165,377,641 8,073,152 969,117 174,419,910
ERER Impairment allowances (154,794) (72,076) (887,295) (1,114,165)
HEH{E Carrying amount 165,222,847 8,001,076 81,822 173,305,745
—O—/\#& 2018
W THI 4B % Gross carrying amount 147,293,443 9,618,181 847,955 157,759,579
kA 2 Impairment allowances (118,746) (55,690) (549,333) (723,769)
IRTA{E Carrying amount 147,174,697 9,562,491 298,622 157,035,810
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Gross loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts by credit quality

The gross loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are analysed by credit asset
classification as follows:

‘F
S—MEE FTRBE FE=FEEY =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETIT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
—O—n&E 2019
&% Pass 10,565,876 162,410 - 10,728,286
TR Special Mention - 4,546 - 4,546
=4 Substandard - - 62,189 62,189
e i Doubtful - - - .
5 15 Loss - - - -
HEBEE Gross notional amount 10,565,876 166,956 62,189 10,795,021
—O—)\& 2018
&R Pass 9,383,765 216,135 - 9,599,900
FEEE Special Mention - 3,728 - 3,728
R &R Substandard - - 22,923 22,923
i Doubtful - - - -
&5 18 Loss . . ) 3
AR Gross notional amount 9,383,765 219,863 22,923 9,626,551

() EEXTHEE

[SACT QIR N7 ot

(7)) Modified financial assets

The modified financial assets not derecognised are as follows:

HEMT
—O0—h —O—N
2019 2018
BT T AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
REREBR TS RS Stage 2 or Stage 3 financial assets modified
FERESHEE during the year
E L& IR [ 48 2H Gross carrying amount after modification y 81,774
[EBGIE ARG Gross carrying amount before modification - 80,660
B E 4 2 R s Net modification gain
(EFfE 13) (Note 13) - 1,114
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(k) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group did not obtain assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security (2018: Nil).

There were no repossessed assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds
used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.

4.2 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in
interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the level of
volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates and equity prices. The Group’s market risk primarily arises from its
positions in foreign exchange, securities and derivatives in its trading and
banking books.

(a) Market risk measurement

The Group’s market risk exposures in different activities are managed by
way of limits established by the Management Committee. Exposures are
measured and monitored on the basis of contractual or notional amount
and outstanding balances. Limits are set by portfolio, product and risk
type, using a combination of risk measurement techniques, including
position limits, sensitivity limits, VaR limits as well as stop loss limits. All
market risk trading positions are monitored and managed by the Treasury
Department. Independent monitoring, checking, daily mark-to-market
valuation and trade confirmation are undertaken by departments
independent of the Treasury Department. Regular checking and reviews
are also conducted by the Group’s internal audit function to ensure
compliance with risk limits. All exceptions are reviewed and approved by
the appropriate level of management and the Management Committee.
Regular reports are reviewed by the Risk Management Committee.

The Group also applies a wide range of stress testing to assess the
financial impact of more extreme events on the market risk exposure of the
Group. The results of the stress testing are reviewed by the Risk
Management Committee.
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E ABEAEEARAERRUINHBEERTER
AR EZRMSIE - EFRIEGZE
DIAVEESAERRZ GSMEER M A
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B st /D B 58,547,000 ST (= O — N 2 B
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

(i) Currency risk

The Group’s currency risk positions mainly arise from foreign
exchange dealing, commercial banking operations and structural
foreign currency exposures.

At 31 December 2019, if HKD had weakened/strengthened within
the pegged range of 0.64% (2018: 0.64%) against USD with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for
the year would have been HK$29,815,000 (2018: HK$21,409,000)
higher/lower. The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation in
2019 was higher than that in 2018 due to the increase of net USD
positions.

If HKD had weakened/strengthened 1% (2018: 1%) against other
currencies except USD with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit after taxation for the year would have been
HK$64,487,000 (2018: HK$55,598,000) higher/lower. The impact
on the Group’s profit after taxation in 2019 was higher than that in
2018 due to the increase of net foreign currencies (excluding USD)
positions.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from the timing
differences in the repricing of interest bearing assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet positions. Any changes in interest rates would
affect the value of those financial assets and liabilities carried at
fair value. The Group enters into interest rate swaps to mitigate the
interest rate risk associated with the fixed-rate financial assets and
financial liabilities.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates at that date had been 100
basis points (2018: 100 basis points) higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year would
have been HK$58,547,000 (2018: HK$48,677,000) lower, mainly
as a result of revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and interest rate contracts. The Group’s other
comprehensive income would have been HK$489,866,000 (2018:
HK$418,154,000) lower due to the revaluation of those financial
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates at that date had been 100
basis points (2018: 100 basis points) lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year would
have been HK$61,204,000 (2018: HK$51,490,000) higher, mainly
as a result of revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and interest rate contracts. The Group’s other
comprehensive income would have been HK$476,621,000 (2018:
HK$423,148,000) higher due to the revaluation of those financial
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group’s exposures to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
variable-rate financial assets and liabilities is insignificant.

(iii1) Equity risk

The Group’s equity risk position mainly arises from the holdings of
certain equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The majority of this
position is held for long term investment purposes.

At 31 December 2019, if the Global equity index at that date had
been 10% (2018:10%) lower/higher with all other variables held
constant and all the equity instruments had moved according to
their historical correlation with the index, the Group’s profit after
taxation for the year would have been HK$6,342,000 (2018:
HK$888,000) lower/higher, and the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have been HK$36,206,000 (2018: HK$28,107,000)
lower/higher. The higher impact on the Group’s profit after tax and
higher impact on other comprehensive income in 2019 compared
with 2018 was mainly attributable to the increase in holdings of the
Group’s fair value through profit or loss portfolios and increase in
fair value through other comprehensive income portfolios.

(iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue

The average daily revenue in 2019 earned from market risk-related
activities by the Bank and certain subsidiaries, including
trading-related net interest income and other revenue was
HK$685,000 (2018: HK$1,538,000). The standard deviation of this
daily revenue was HK$8,027,000 (2018: HK$8,219,000).
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue (Continued)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
The Group’s exposures mainly comprise foreign exchange dealing by the
Treasury Department and currency exposures originated by its
commercial banking businesses.

The Management Committee sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions. All
exposures are centrally managed by the Treasury Department and
independently monitored by a separate department on a daily basis.

Foreign currency exposures arising from customer transactions, including
currency options embedded in certain customer deposits, are normally
offset against other customer transactions or transactions with the market.
Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets is hedged
using currency swaps or forward exchange contracts to mitigate the
foreign exchange risk.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in the
tables are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency. The off-balance sheet gap represents the net
notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to manage the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

T =TT BT AR HAft =1
HKD usb AUD RMB Others Total
AT AT AT AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
R=O0—hsE At 31 December 2019
+Z-HA=+—H
BE Assets
Cash, balances and placements
RIS - [FI2EE with and loans and advances
B to banks 9,123,953 34,860,907 1,711,065 17,227,749 3,404,313 66,327,987
Derivative financial
SR TH instruments 588,286 - - - - 588,286
LI EESEAER Financial assets at fair value
MR SRbEE through profit or loss 3,944 3,847,395 109,259 1,883,425 892,698 6,736,721
EAIE Investments in securities 42,655,195 17,370,847 4,249,618 6,190,580 1,664,407 72,130,647
BB EAM TR Advances and other accounts 101,604,917 51,047,062 26,632 30,228,640 5,024,712 187,931,963
HoAt Other assets 5,038,673 124,801 - 2,905,446 58,814 8,127,734
HaEE Total assets 159,014,968 107,251,012 6,096,574 58,435,840 11,044,944 341,843,338
& Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
EIEZE=/4 banks 4,514,398 7,792,927 13,203 14,707,283 210,621 27,238,432
THIEE N &l Trading liabilities - 309,136 - - - 309,136
Derivative financial
(st = instruments 393,553 - - - - 393,553
BEE#R Deposits from customers 132,852,356 55,558,813 7,400,285 40,203,506 7,120,983 243,135,943
BT 2 (FES Certificates of deposit issued 699,074 3,026,185 - - - 3,725,259
BT 1% BT Subordinated debts issued - 3,110,591 - - - 3,110,591
HAth B f Other liabilities 15,137,844 1,382,684 31,869 560,189 74,701 17,187,287
AR Total liabilities 153,597,225 71,180,336 7,445,357 55,470,978 7,406,305 295,100,201
BEAERZNFFAFEE  Net on-balance sheet position 5,417,743 36,070,676 (1,348,783) 2,964,862 3,638,639 46,743,137
HEAERINER Off-balance sheet net notional
B5%E position 28,274,828 (30,491,599) 1,396,015 3,413,435 (2,341,146) 251,533
BEERE Credit commitments 23,277,069 6,866,697 - 9,525,301 35,257 39,704,324
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Continued)

HBTT

e

BT

NG

FHAth

Pad

=n
HKD usb AUD RMB Others Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=O—N\&E At 31 December 2018
+=—F=+—8
BE Assets
Cash, balances and placements
RIS - [FI2EER with and loans and advances
B to banks 16,534,164 51,127,918 971,614 16,256,368 1,607,495 86,497,559
Derivative financial
TS T AR instruments 487,673 - - - - 487,673
LI EESEAER Financial assets at fair value
MR SRbEE through profit or loss 299,898 3,788,297 110,749 1,567,024 893,045 6,659,013
BHE Investments in securities 20,796,416 16,299,095 4,070,663 4,266,111 2,566,621 47,998,906
SRR HAMERIE Advances and other accounts 99,735,541 41,116,293 19,764 23,380,773 1,014,840 165,267,211
FITE Assets classified as held for sale 1,980 - - - - 1,980
HoAt Other assets 5,081,082 53,068 - 2,430,909 432 7,565,491
HaEE Total assets 142,936,754 112,384,671 5172,790 47,901,185 6,082,433 314,477,833
&5 Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
EEE= banks 4,291,594 12,665,504 2,216 18,203,600 238,659 35,401,573
Derivative financial
PSR TH instruments 769,341 - - - - 769,341
R Deposits from customers 126,833,636 45,872,734 8,299,338 32,192,462 8,131,232 221,329,402
BT REGES Certificates of deposit issued 2,956,781 4,667,251 - - - 7,624,032
BT IR EEE Subordinated debts issued - 3,128,160 - - - 3,128,160
Hith& & Other liabilities 4,172,424 983,091 34,058 979,519 40,802 6,209,894
AR Total liabilities 139,023,776 67,316,740 8,335,612 51,375,581 8,410,693 274,462,402
HEAEFNFFA)S4  Net on-balance sheet position 3,912,978 45,067,931 (3,162,822) (3,474,396) (2,328,260) 40,015,431
HEAERINER Off-balance sheet net notional
£ position 25,044,952 (41,061,747) 3,183,111 9,909,762 2,531,020 (392,902)
BEERE Credit commitments 27,420,434 8,445,649 243,439 4,522,820 111,623 40,743,965
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates in respect of its fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

Interest margin may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Group
has established policies and systems to monitor its interest-sensitive
positions and net repricing gap to ensure that they are all properly
managed under the limits approved by the Management Committee.
Actual positions are compared with the approved limits and
independently monitored by a risk management department.

While the primary objective of interest rate risk management is to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income, interest rate positions may be taken for yield enhancement within
the risk limits.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amount categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities - repricing analysis

PaRl
—{EH
®UT —@ALE SEAME  —EME  HEENE  FHA
Up to Z=M@EAH B BTAE Over Non-interest &5
1month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BT OBMTT  BMTIT  OBMTT  OBSTT  OBMTR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
N_O—hE At 31 December 2019
+=A=+—H
& Assets
Cash, balances and placements
[EFER S FE2EE with and loans and advances
B to banks 37,045,719 7,047,462 7,198,989 - - 15,035,817 66,327,987
Derivative financial
TR T E instruments - - - - - 588,286 588,286
DL EESE ARR Financial assets at fair value
e & RbERE through profit or loss 149,334 514,269 1,439,633 4,089,820 171,248 372,417 6,736,721
SBHNE Investments in securities 8,678,385 23,824,860 24,218,553 14,275,553 - 1,133,296 72,130,647
O HARETE Advances and other accounts 100,436,999 55,234,256 22,810,415 5,505,950 59,814 3,884,529 187,931,963
FAth Other assets - - - - - 8,127,734 8,127,734
YEAEE Total assets 146,310,437 86,620,847 55,667,590 23,871,323 231,062 29,142,079 341,843,338
‘aE Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
EEE= banks 11,094,800 4,086,552 4,490,770 - - 7,566,310 27,238,432
R HETE T &l Trading liabilities - - - 309,136 - - 309,136
Derivative financial
P14 TH instruments - - - - - 393,553 393,553
HPEFK Deposits from customers 128,896,888 65,288,913 33,645,677 2,635,793 - 12,668,672 243,135,943
BTG Certificates of deposit issued 778,560 85,166 2,861,533 - - - 3,725,259
BT BB EE Subordinated debts issued - - - 3,110,591 - - 3,110,591
FAth B {5 Other liabilities 178,382 - - - - 17,008,905 17,187,287
=T Total liabilities 140,948,630 69,460,631 40,997,980 6,055,520 - 37,637,440 295,100,201
FIEBURE220E49%8  Total interest sensitivity gap
CRESEES) (unadjusted) 5,361,807 17,160,216 14,669,610 17,815,803 231,062
FIEETETHA4 > Effect of interest rate
A1 derivatives (7,347,553) 6,072,009 3,543,948 (2,027,710) -
FIEBUREZ20E49%8  Total interest sensitivity gap
[(EEED) (adjusted) (1,985,746) 23,232,225 18,213,558 15,788,093 231,062
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4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities - repricing analysis (Continued)

ST ()
—{EH
LAY —@HAME =EALE —ELE AL TEFE
Upto EZ={EH e EHE Over  Non-interest &F
1month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
AT BTt ABETT AT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
n=0—/\& At 31 December 2018
+=—F=+—8
& Assets
Cash, balances and placements
[EFER S FE2EE with and loans and advances
J= 74 to banks 50,483,465 12,027,646 12,673,834 234,932 - 11,077,682 86,497,559
Derivative financial
PSR TE instruments - - - - - 487,673 487,673
LI EESEAER Financial assets at fair value
e &Rb&RE through profit or loss 377,820 77,998 767,833 5,270,042 - 165,320 6,659,013
EAIE Investments in securities 6,566,886 14,746,696 13,285,443 12,256,972 - 1,142,909 47,998,906
EE R HA R IE Advances and other accounts 99,824,800 51,997,954 8,541,046 1,510,056 3,397 3,389,958 165,267,211
SIEHEERE Assets classified as held for sale - - - - - 1,980 1,980
e Other assets - - - - - 7565491 7565491
YR Total assets 157,252,971 78,850,294 35,268,156 19,272,002 3,397 23,831,013 314,477,833
‘aE Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
[EZE K banks 18,602,556 3,493,995 7,398,277 - - 5,906,745 35,401,573
Derivative financial
PSR TH instruments - - - - - 769,341 769,341
B IPE Deposits from customers 123,299,860 46,756,246 36,036,248 3,424,342 - 11,812,706 221,329,402
BTG Certificates of deposit issued - 5,624,434 1,999,598 - - - 7,624,032
ST B IEETE Subordinated debts issued - - - 3,128,160 - - 3,128,160
Hpth & (& Other liabilities 60,222 - - - - 6,149,672 6,209,894
e Total liabilities 141,962,638 55,874,675 45,434,123 6,552,502 - 24,638,464 274,462,402
FIEBUEFEZFE44%H  Total interest sensitivity gap
(REKEEHEL) (unadjusted) 15,290,333 22,975,619  (10,165,967) 12,719,500 3,397
FIEGTET RG>  Effect of interest rate
ez derivatives (4,200,733) 5,226,718 4,197,260 (5,123,630) 118,978
) S RN 72 R4 EE Total interest sensitivity gap
[EEES) (adjusted) 11,089,600 28,202,337 (5,968,707) 7,595,870 122,375
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and
to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the
failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments to
lend. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources
from overnight deposits, current accounts, matured deposits, loan
drawdowns and guarantees, and from margin and other calls on
cash-settled derivatives.

(a) Liquidity risk management process

The management of the Group’s liquidity risk is governed by the
liquidity risk management policies and principles as approved by the
Board of Directors. The Asset and Liability Management Committee,
which is delegated by the Management Committee on behalf of the Board
of Directors, is responsible to monitor the Group’s overall liguidity
management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee sets the
strategy, policy and limits for managing liquidity risk for approval by the
Board of Directors or the Management Committee, and the means for
ensuring that such strategy and policy are implemented effectively.
Regular meeting is held to review the compliance status of the
monitoring matrix established and the needs of change in strategy and
policy. Daily liquidity management is managed by the Treasury
Department. The limits, triggers or alerts are monitored by the Financial
Management Department and reported to the Asset and Liability
Management Committee on a regular basis. The Internal Audit
Department performs periodic reviews to make sure that the liquidity risk
management functions are carried out effectively.

The primary responsibility for managing liquidity and funding within the
Group’s framework and risk appetite resides with the mainland and
overseas branches, which is monitored by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee. Internally, intra-group funding transactions are
transacted at arm’s length and treated in a manner in line with other third
party transactions, with regular monitoring and appropriate control.

The objective of liquidity management is to meet the obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth and to
comply with the statutory liquidity ratios. To achieve this, the following
liquidity management processes are in place:
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(a) Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

76

Projecting cash flows under normal and various stress scenarios
regularly, using the net mismatch gap between assets and
liabilities to estimate the prospective net funding requirement
and formulate the corresponding actions.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons,
including next day, seven days and one month, which are key
periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the
financial assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet items as
well as the expected maturity of these items based on historical
observations and cash flow models.

Liquidity stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating
risk exposure under stressed conditions arising from extreme
but plausible market or macroeconomic movements.

Different stress testing scenarios, namely an institution specific
crisis, a general market crisis and combined crisis, are
performed on a regular basis in accordance with the principles
stated in Supervisory Policy Manual “Sound Systems and
Controls for Liquidity Risk Management” (LM-2).

The stress testing result is also one of the most important early
warning indicators under contingency funding plan. With
reference to the stress testing results, the Group identifies
potential vulnerabilities on its liquidity position under stressed
market conditions. If the impact is severe enough and triggers
the plan, the Bank will deal with such liquidity problems in
accordance with the formulated contingency funding plan that
sets out remedial actions;

Monitoring the liquidity coverage ratio, net stable funding
ratio, loan to deposit ratio and maturity mismatch ratio against
internal and/or regulatory requirements;

Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure, the stability and the core level
of the deposit portfolio;

Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix;



HBREKERTARAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

W Rt

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 SHERERE &) 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
43 RENMERRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(a) JFENEE S EPEFESE (48) (a) Liquidity risk management process (Continued)
V) CEWESEBHELA > HGETE (v)  Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
O R N S A S product;
vi) By FE {7 8 0E TH @J CEEENR O KE (vi)  Maintaining high-quality liquid assets (“HQLA”) which can be
R A BIfE A 32 BE ] [ 475 =7 DL B B sold or pledged as collateral to provide liquidity even under
& B AF 9 4 1Y BERHNEE - & periods of stress. The Group invests in good credit quality
FRBEEHERRY B LHH investments with deep and liquid market to ensure short term
5 S R A gk > DUHE R BE AE 4K funding requirements are covered within prudent limits. Level
FEEENWREANTGHTESR 1 assets comprise cash, balances with central bank and high
R &= ;‘ﬁ_@j} ‘é_f_% 1 ¥ quality central government and central bank securities, while
& FRR T RIRT R EE R R Level 2 assets comprise corporate securities of investment
B B PO SRIT Z BB e 55 > 58 grade.
SEEMBEEGELM AR
SR 2 A EIEFE S o
THRIEAEHNEERY & E The table below shows the balances (before assumed haircuts)
(R &R AT ) & of HQLA of the Group:
—O—h —O—N
2019 2018
AETIT AHTIT
HK$’000 HKS$°000
F—aK Level 1 48,547,962 28,598,742
Bk Level 2 6,208,481 7,290,668
54,756,443 35,889,410
T% BRBEEASTHRFANEE All assets held as HQLA are unencumbered:
EEEmMEMRAE
(vil) FFEEFEAETEcTSHETEED (vii)  Maintaining access to the interbank money market to activate
gE 1 facilities;
(vil) EFFE R &S - EEHEHHEE (viii)  Maintaining a contingency funding plan. The Group will
EE (BHEANE ETSEEZE) , I utilise early warning indicators (including both internal and
& R 7 R BT E S AR R B &5 R market indicators), and integrate with the results of the
DUE: B W E R AMER I 2R - RAA (E scenarios and assumptions used in the stress test to monitor
o B 52 BEOR A 85 E Ot 8 & R 0 both internal and external factors. Should there be any signs of
WEAYE > HEHTHAR TR significant impact on the Group’s liquidity position, the Crisis
M & i E %4@ YBasEEmEEg Management Team, which is chaired by the Group’s Chief
P o T2 R MR UM FETT 8 - & Executive Officer, will take charge to handle the crisis.
2R EB 2B A 28R E & Corresponding actions as laid down in the policy will be taken
& - REE NG E B & E T # in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
FEANE - long-term implications for business. The plan is also subject to

review and update on a regular basis.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis

THFERIEEEHZ2 &4 7 The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant maturity
HHHe THIM > AEEH 2 groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
BEBHEE SN ZFEE contractual maturity date. The analysis in respect of insurance liabilities is based on the
BEOBEENEEHCHER estimated timing of net cash outflows resulting from recognised insurance liabilities at
HEBAEMGEIFHE SR L the end of the reporting period.
S
—fEH
RNEE BUTFT —@AME =Z@EAME —ENE s
Repayable Up to B2=@EA B4 BRE AHEM L BHH &5t
on demand 1month  1-3months 3-12 months 1-5years Over 5 years Undated Total
BT E%TT B%T  B%TT BE¥TT B%¥TT BT A%
HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000
N_O—hE At 31 December 2019
+=B=+—H
BE Assets
Cash, balances and
placements with and
[EEFIRE ~ [FIZEFIK loans and advances
FEK to banks 28,940,840 21,411,243 6,833,869 7,743,697 758,836 - 639,502 66,327,987
Derivative financial
PSR TH instruments 588,286 - - - - - - 588,286
Financial assets at fair
PLATHEESEAIR value through profit
ik SRlEE or loss - 132,128 264,778 1,439,633 4,316,799 210,966 372,417 6,736,721
HHIE Investments in securities - 3,310,210 15,010,349 25,621,053 27,055,739 - 1,133,296 72,130,647
Advances and other
EER R H A ARTA accounts 11,427,590 22,770,438 12,419,833 48,918,860 69,679,034 21,744,741 971,467 187,931,963
HoAth e Other assets - - - 783 - 27,347 8,099,604 8,127,734
UL Total assets 40,956,716 47,624,019 34,528,829 83,724,026 101,810,408 21,983,054 11,216,286 341,843,338
‘aE Liabilities
Deposits and balances
BEZe=¢ from banks 7,928,729 10,732,381 4,086,552 4,490,770 - - - 27,238432
ZRIEIE T A% Trading liabilities - - - - 309,136 - - 309,136
Derivative financial
FIAESE T A instruments 393,553 - - - - - - 393,553
Deposits from
B customers 86,000,805 54,655,755 65,288,913 33,645,677 2,635,793 - - 243,135,943
Certificates of deposit
BT AT issued - 778,560 85,166 2,861,533 - - - 3,725,259
Subordinated debts
T2 1% EEE issued - 3,110,591 3,110,591
Hofth & f Other liabilities 12,382,260 637,008 603,477 1,904,536 1,162,948 68,653 428405 17,187,287
- of which: Lease
- b FHEES liabilities - 10,160 21,265 77,931 184,168 17,540 - 311,064
=it Total liabilities 107,614,347 66,803,704 70,064,108 42,902,516 4,107,877 3,179,244 428,405 295,100,201
FEESEINSYE  Net liquidity gap (66,657,631) (19,179,685) (35,535279) 40,821,510  97,702531 18,803,810 10,787,881 46,743,137
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

—{E A
BB (i ®AF —@EAME =ZEANE —ELLE fiEEr e
Repayable Upto Z={HH B EHE AELLE HHH &
on demand 1 month 1-3 months ~ 3-12 months 1-5years Over 5 years Undated Total
BT BT BT AT AT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
H=0—/\& At 31 December 2018
+=p=1—H
BE Assets
Cash, balances and
placements with and
JEEFIRE ~ FIZEFIR loans and advances
FEFK to banks 29,286,156 29,899,092 11,799,503 13,569,522 1,331,304 - 611,982 86,497,559
Derivative financial
TR T E instruments 487,673 - - - - - - 487,673
Financial assets at fair
PLATHEESEAIR value through profit
IR SR or loss - 299,898 - 767,833 5,425,962 - 165,320 6,659,013
BHE Investments in securities - 4,857,002 5,608,721 14,274,282 22,115,992 - 1,142,909 47,998,906
Advances and other
BRI HA AR accounts 3,797,474 13,936,220 13095825 36,049,199 754483850 21,952,678 986,965 165,267,211
Assets classified as
FIE e held for sale - 1,980 - - - - - 1,980
HoAth Other assets - - - 614 - 50,917 7,513,960 7,565,491
YEAEE Total assets 33,571,303 48,994,192 30,504,049 64,661,450 104,322,108 22,003,595 10,421,136 314,477,833
‘aE Liabilities
Deposits and balances
EEZE*1/4 from banks 6,780,732 17,728,569 3,420,393 7,471,879 - - - 35,401,573
Derivative financial
PTEEETE instruments 769,341 - - - - - - 769,341
Deposits from
HPEFK customers 86,960,119 47,994,396 46,756,246 36,194,299 3,424,342 - - 221,329,402
Certificates of deposit
BT IEEE issued - - 5,624,434 1,999,598 - - - 7,624,032
Subordinated debts
BT IRMEFH issued - - - - - 3,128,160 - 3,128,160
Hith &g Other liabilities 1,311,678 1,101,014 547,163 1,863,223 1,059,434 12,296 315,086 6,209,894
g =T Total liabilities 95,821,870 66,823,979 56,348,236 47,528,999 4,483,776 3,140,456 315,086 274,462,402
TENE S SRR Net liquidity gap (62,250,567) (17,829,787) (25,844,187) 17,132,451 99,838,332 18,863,139 10,106,050 40,015,431
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transacted
business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of
losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes
in interest rates and currency risks.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are generally less than the amount of the commitment. In
this regard, the Group does not expect the third party would fully draw
funds under the agreement. The total outstanding contractual amount of
commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, as many of these commitments will expire or terminate
without being funded.

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The tables on the following pages analyse the cash flow payable by the
Group in respect of non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities, and by
estimated timing of net cash outflow for insurance liabilities at the end of
the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

—f&@R =EAME
BIRHER BRUT —@ERNMLE B —HbE HEUE W
Repayable Up to 2=f@H 3-12 EHE Over B &t
on demand 1 month 1-3 months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
BYTT  EETT BT BETIT A% AT AETT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
N_O—hE At 31 December 2019
FZRE4—H
Non-derivative cash
ETEBSREAR flow liabilities
Deposits and balances
EIEZE=/4 from banks 7,928,749 10,769,497 4,128,827 4,596,981 - - - 27,424,054
THEE T &fE Trading liabilities - - - 4,672 330,135 - - 334,807
Deposits from
HFEE customers 86,921,277 54,968,221 65,938,035 34,378,689 2,737,661 - - 244,943,883
Certificates of deposit
BTG issued - 778,620 85,648 2,919,144 - - - 3,783,412
Subordinated debts
BT IBIEEIE issued - - - 116,793 467,172 3,464,859 - 4,048,824
Hith& & Other liabilities 12,382,260 637,035 603,624 1,906,156 1,179,391 72,570 428,405 17,209,441
- of which: Lease
- Hbg  HEERE liabilities - 10,187 21,412 79,551 200,611 21,457 - 333,218
FERESRE Derivative cash flow
Derivative financial
TSR TR instruments - 31,407,993 17,857,814 33,233,310 190,271 - - 82,689,388
107,232,286 98,561,366 88,613,948 77,155,745 4,904,630 3,537,429 428,405 380,433,809
RZO—)\& At 31 December 2018
FoR=4—8
Non-derivative cash
IETERSRESE flow liabilities
Deposits and balances
EIEZE=/4 from banks 6,780,735 17,858,533 3,508,705 7,749,683 - - - 35,897,656
Deposits from
R customers 86,961,251 48,290,480 47,168,996 37,082,979 3,637,066 - - 223,140,772
Certificates of deposit
BT AT issued - - 5,658,720 2,050,086 - - - 7,708,806
Subordinated debts
BT 1B E(EIE issued - - - 117,468 469,872 3,602,352 - 4,189,692
Hh& & Other liabilities 1,311,678 1,101,014 547,163 1,863,223 1,059,434 12,296 315,086 6,209,894
RS RE Derivative cash flow
Derivative financial
TTESRMT A instruments - 34,033,599 18,883,726 40,233,660 175,826 3,336 - 93,330,147
95,053,664 101,283,626 75,767,310 89,097,099 5,342,198 3,617,984 315,086 370,476,967
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4 sREREHE & 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.3 REMERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(d) BEEBEZRLINFH (d) Off-balance sheet items
—EEMT —HE E
Not later BHE HEME =11
than 1 year 1-5years  Over 5 years Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
RZO—NE At 31 December 2019
+ZR=+—H
TG RE Loan commitments 32,513,272 - - 32,513,272
Guarantees and other
iR R HA SRS financial facilities
- Guarantees and standby
- PEORE R FE AR letters of credit 6,446,390 - - 6,446,390

- Documentary and
commercial letters of

- PREL R REEE(E Rk credit 744,662 - - 744,662
BRI Capital commitments 104,716 - - 104,716
39,809,040 - - 39,809,040
HN=O—/)\&F At 31 December 2018
+Z—H=+—H
TR Loan commitments 33,985,166 - - 33,985,166
Forward forward deposit
EHATAELIIGER placed 243,439 - - 243,439
Guarantees and other
ERE N H A REEE financial facilities
- Guarantees and standby
- EREBRFERERIR letters of credit 6,008,505 - - 6,008,505

- Documentary and
commercial letters of

- IREE R PEEEAIR credit 506,855 - - 506,855
EETHAKIE Operating lease commitments 113,968 161,805 21,472 297,245
BAREIE Capital commitments 82,431 - - 82,431

40,940,364 161,805 21,472 41,123,641
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people or systems, or from external events.

The Group has established an operational risk management framework to
identify, measure, monitor and control operational risk. The Policy on
Operational Risk Management, approved by the Management
Committee, defines responsibilities of various committees, business units
and supporting departments and encompasses various tools including
control self-assessment, operational incident management and key risk
indicators to facilitate measurement and assessment of operational risk.
The Group also relies on internal control mechanisms within the business
lines, supplemented by the internal audit function to manage and control
operational risk.

The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Board’s expectations regarding duty, responsibility and integrity are
clearly spelled out in formal policy statements. The lines of authority
and responsibilities of each business and operational unit have been
clearly defined to ensure adequate checks and balances. Procedures
including risk assessments, segregation of duties, use of limits, training
and regular verification and reconciliation of transactions and accounts
are used in the internal control mechanism.

Risk assessment will be conducted on the outsourcing services, new
products and new systems implementation. Business continuity plans are
in place to mitigate the impact and interruptions to business activities
caused by system failure, social disorder or natural disaster. Adequate
insurance is acquired to cover a reasonable extent of operational risk. The
Group benchmarks practices against peers, and regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for regular review of the
operational risk profile and the Group’s internal audit function plays an
important role in the Group’s operational risk framework. It provides an
objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is
maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.5 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are as follows:

- To comply with the capital requirements under the Banking
(Capital) Rules;

- To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

- To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The Hong Kong Banking Ordinance requires each bank or banking group
to maintain a prescribed ratio of regulatory capital to total risk-weighted
assets. Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, including the Securities
and Futures Commission and Insurance Authority.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk
weights as defined in the Banking (Capital) Rules according to the nature
of and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated
with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible
collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance
sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent
nature of the potential losses.

Capital adequacy and the use of capital are monitored on a regular basis
by the Group’s management. The Group applies an internal trigger
capital adequacy ratio which is well above the minimum statutory
requirement as an indicator for managing the capital adequacy. In
addition, the Group will assess the impact on its capital adequacy ratio
when there are new products, new investments or any significant
transactions.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with
all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 and are well above the minimum required
ratios set by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the
current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. They include net
present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to similar
instruments for which market prices exist, Black-Scholes option pricing
models and other valuation models. Inputs used in valuation techniques
include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other
risk premiums used in estimating discount rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, bond and equity prices, price volatilities and correlations.

The Group uses valuation models that use only observable market data
for determining the fair value of debt securities and derivatives for which
there is no active market. Observable prices and model inputs are usually
available in the market for listed debt securities, exchange traded
derivatives and over-the-counter derivatives. Availability of observable
prices and model inputs is prone to changes as a result of specific events
and general conditions in the financial markets.

When observable prices and model inputs are not available, the Group
uses valuation models of which the inputs may not be observable in the
market but are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated based
on assumptions. Examples of instruments involving significant
unobservable inputs include unlisted equity securities and investment
fund for which there is no active market. Management judgment and
estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation
model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the
financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate discount
rates.

85



HBREKERTARAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

W Rt

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 GRUEREE

46 SMEENARZIA

AT ARG H B IR R
2z EMEAE

#H @

L\\
_H
m
s
=

P 2 25
R ALl 2 AR

st

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

[FFEFR R B

f&ﬂ%m
Y 2N

Gl
St
.
=
=
w2t

s
¥ 4
h

o
=)
5
H 5

e
po
E%tl
=
Bl
S
o=
|
gl

X

piupdsi
& i
ZHAHH
i

i

S mH
|
PR i
¢ B

\
/|

5
>
HIF -
i
7

i
¥

°Hm%$%ﬂ
4

A o i O 2

B NI} 22 SR B S
M o IO jn 2

:

LR

FL At AR TH AE 90 BR 6K A
ﬁfd\ﬂﬁﬁ%§b ’fﬁ

DE+

R R
AN DS

S

B8 b o 3
%mﬁMS

i

e

T,

5 I\
=2 o

\
/i

B RNRD B
B HET SR

250
O}

[FFEFFARE ik

4
5
W
ﬁl_ll;
I
w
=

Ol % ¢
avm AR
o F
FZaT
2R
3t
g
F
or

° 3 @ 3t
Kt
LN
R
&>
It 8%

By mE
L -

=)

U S P
- 4= o

Gty

It e 2 oo i 4
1538 2 3
R

7% BOm D i
| E R T

T Em
- BEm

2% & §h &l
B ES S
OF & 3 g I

W -

=

\
/|

m?
m
>

e HH
RITZ A REN T A

AT ZAF R K
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

N,
~

i
=
¥

7
\|

N
HEERH

/

HO
um

Fis

'\/\/

it

!
1
"

BN o ZEMH
B2 H P

DI E T
T35 ) o G S o

_H?mhm
= G S - 0

HMﬁNmM@h

o 8
FRNEYER
2H 8 (7] 3 i

B0 3 N
R = Bl By =

D N
EE BRI
8 i 2R

e
S
Rt
P

\
/)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair
value in the Group’s statement of financial position are estimated as
follows:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
is their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits, which is normally less than one year, is based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market interest
rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
Therefore the fair value is approximately equal to its carrying
value.

Advances and other accounts

Advances and other accounts are net of allowances for
impairment. All except a very insignificant portion of loans and
advances to customers bear interest at a floating rate. The Group
has assessed the fair value of advances to customers and trade
bills, after taking into account the relevant market interest rates
and noted that the total fair value is not materially different from
the total carrying value.

Deposits and balances from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
maturity, which include non-interest bearing deposits, is the
amount repayable on demand. The fair value of those balances
bearing interest at a floating rate is their carrying value.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits from
banks and deposits from customers without quoted market price is
based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity. As they are normally less than
one year, their fair values are approximately equal to their
carrying values.

Certificates of deposit and capital instruments

The fair value of certificates of deposit and capital instruments
issued is based on quoted market prices. For those where quoted
market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity. The Group has assessed the fair value of
certificates of deposit and capital instruments issued after taking
into account the relevant yield curve and noted that the total fair
value is not materially different from the total carrying value.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(e)  Other accounts and accruals

HMEEEHERE —KBLRTFAEF The estimated fair value of other accounts and accruals, which are
BZahek - At HAVEER normally non-interest bearing balances, is their carrying value.
HiEHE -
& Faisg & BIRNETTEHH 0 T F Except for the above consolidated statement of financial position items,
i/ 7 N NS TS Sl B 0y NSl A 5 the following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of
NP EEEF WA RS EEMNEA#E other financial assets and liabilities not presented on the Group’s
FIBR A E MM A EEE - consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value.
ARIEME AEE
Carrying value Fair value
—O0—h —O—N —O—h —O—N
2019 2018 2019 2018
AT AT BEETT AT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
SEPEE Financial assets
HEE AR AR YINR 2~ 4 Rl Financial investments at
BE amortised cost 725,855 679,491 727,730 680,467

AR A B R JE DL F B E SR
e T B HHEFEAFEENE
KAE H o3 #r

The tables below analyse financial instruments not carried at fair value at
the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value treatment is categorised:

SRIEE
Financial assets
AT IR 2 SRR E

Financial investments at amortised cost
—O—n —O—N
2019 2018
BETT AT
HK$’000 HKS$°000
= Level 1 496,244 490,783
B Level 2 179,008 167,106
E=E Level 3 50,603 21,602
725,855 679,491

HAMB RS EASE 13588 E 7 EE
TENBRHESRBEMEE T AZ&
ABBEZIBEZF EEBEEE - 7
B =y e A B SO T 85 & AR M 0L
AR IAIER © F o] B R0 & A K
Wi T A £ [ B TS5 Y T oGS Y T %
ABBELET PSP EENER
e Fljg - 2FE-THNRGET
GG TSRECREHRR) -

HKFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on
whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Group’s market
assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair

value hierarchy:

. Level 1 - Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for

an identical instrument.
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46 SREERABEZANEEE (8@ 4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

e P 2 Jg - WRBEEENEEM™ . Level 2 - Valuation technigues based on observable inputs, either
)k Faﬁ FE (W1 i (E P HEED) directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).
AN B2 EB - e X MAEE This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market
B THABEULT G giEE T prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for
H G B W5 LS W m S #® identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less
H 5 BtE —=MHE T BEFEIEERE than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant
TEWNENTESHRME  5HME inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.
B X 0 % Al E A AT Y
TAHE > S EESEERT
LW RN g -

. E£3E - RBEEEHIFTEHES . Level 3 - Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
BN ABEBEZAEES - LB inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation
REENTE - HA&EEEAE technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
A Z BB IERE B 2078 unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
B Mk FJE A 2= Ay B g E DL valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
HEEHELEERNELE - LEXMH based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
EMNTE  wEEEEE TSR unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
WENHEESH T BE 22 HEH differences between the instruments.

H o HEPFEFEHEENIET
Bl Bt 0 LA [H
SR T HZ B ER -

B RERE E/EERS 0B ZA TS This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available.

B REBEHFITNELTEEEASRM The Group considers relevant and observable market prices in its

Fe AR S E A AR E e valuations where possible.

HEZE O NEFE+ZZH=+—HI1LZ During the year ended 31 December 2018, a financial instrument of

MEFEE  HRESOHEEERA S HK$156,976,000 was transferred out from Level 2 to Level 3 of the fair

REENSHE B TEZE L IJETE value hierarchy when significant inputs used in its fair value

22> M AR 156,976,000 JT 1Y & @l T measurement, which was previously observable became unobservable.

HRAFHEHEBHRNWE _—BE AL =

MR ES SR EmGEEEL Due to changes in market conditions for certain securities, quoted prices

EERENG T EEFEINZEFTND in active markets were not available to reflect all appropriate risks for

FRE - HMRETEHRNHE 2% these securities. However, there was sufficient information available to

BERHNEEREEELE LN N E measure the fair values of these securities based on observable market

EBE AL£EBWN_O0O—LE+H= inputs. Therefore, these securities were transferred from Level 1 to Level

+—HBHE® 657,166,000 ;7L (— O — 2 of the fair value hierarchy and amounted to HK$657,166,000 at 31

JUAE ¢ R 3.534,136,000 JT)EE & ¢ December 2019 (2018: HK$3,534,136,000).

AVFEERBSINE -—EBEAE G -

HRRHES SR ENTSRERESE L Due to changes in market conditions for certain securities, quoted prices

FEREFEE b & §§IJ P& L LYk in active market became available for these securities. Therefore, these

g RAEEKZ=O— jL i +-H=+ securities were transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 of the fair value

— H B HEH 514,437,000 7T 35 5% 1¢ N hierarchy and amounted to HK$514,437,000 at 31 December 2019.

BERHRNE " BEALE—E -

KEEFEKNFEMERESE > EE TR The Group recognises transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as

FHAENREH R TR - at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

THIREHHERUAFEHEETEE EE 2 The tables below analyse financial instruments, measured at fair
e TH  #EGEAFEENRERESD value on a recurring basis at the end of the reporting period, by the
SR s level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value treatment
is categorised:
£ L =8 =11
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
—O—N&E 2019
BE Assets
T4 eR T HE Derivative financial instruments - 588,286 - 588,286
Financial assets mandatorily
HELLATEESEAIR measured at fair value
TR SRS E ¢ through profit or loss:
- EBEES - Debt securities 2,522,216 238,843 - 2,761,059
- Equity securities and
- B S MIEERE S investment fund 246,308 61,053 48,197 355,558
Financial assets designated at
HEELANHEESEAE fair value through profit or
iR 2 RS loss:
- E%EE - Debt securities 3,296,515 306,730 16,859 3,620,104
Financial assets at fair value
DUAFEEFE A 2 through other
H s~ S RlE ZE comprehensive income
- Balances and placements
with and loans and
- [EIZEEI R B advances to banks 1,120,892 - - 1,120,892
- BRIEE - Financial investments
- [E%E5 - Debt securities 58,027,246 12,252,030 - 70,279,276
- RS R E - Equity securities and
He investment fund 417,555 - 707,961 1,125,516
- Advances and other
- B HATRETE accounts - 8,860,385 - 8,860,385
65,630,732 22,307,327 773,017 88,711,076
5=l Liabilities
THEE N &lE Trading liabilities 309,136 - - 309,136
TSR T B Derivative financial instruments - 393,553 - 393,553
309,136 393,553 - 702,689
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

e ¢ ot e &3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT T AT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
—O—/\# 2018
BiE Assets
A er T HE Derivative financial instruments - 487,673 - 487,673
Financial assets mandatorily
HELLATEESEAIR measured at fair value
REE Y G REIEE - through profit or loss:
- BB - Debt securities 1,462,901 854,739 - 2,317,640
- Equity securities and
- RS S MIEEE S investment fund 38,666 47,132 55,547 141,345
Financial assets designated at
HEELANHEESEAE fair value through profit or
iR 2 EREEE loss:
- B - Debt securities 3,545,375 607,833 46,820 4,200,028
Financial assets at fair value
DUAFEEFEA A 2 through other
HW s~ S RlE ZE comprehensive income
- Balances and placements
with and loans and
- [EIZEFI R B advances to banks - 16,009,397 - 16,009,397
- BRIEE - Financial investments
- [BEE A - Debt securities 41,744,931 4,563,163 - 46,308,094
- RS R E - Equity securities and
g investment fund 280,682 - 730,639 1,011,321
- Advances and other
- B HATRETE accounts - 7,837,722 - 7,837,722
47,072,555 30,407,659 833,006 78,313,220
5=l Liabilities
TEER T A Derivative financial instruments - 769,341 - 769,341
- 769,341 - 769,341
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair
value measurements is as follows:

BE
Assets
BEDLAHEE
PAAPEES: s ABRRZ
HArEEE SRIEE fEEIATHEE
ZERIERE Financial assets EABERIEZ
Financial assets mandatorily SRERE
at fair value measured at Financial assets
through other fair value designated at fair
comprehensive through value through
income profit or loss profit or loss
SRIE
Financial
investments
RS IR E A E EHE
Equity securities and investment fund Debt securities
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
N_O—JFE—H—H At 1 January 2019 730,639 55,547 46,820
(BB HE AR Total (losses)/gains recognised in
- Other comprehensive
- Hitemliss income (22,678) - -
- iEiR - Profit or loss - (7,350) 16,888
4EEL Settlements - - (46,849)
RZO—h4F
+_H=+—H At 31 December 2019 707,961 48,197 16,859
AN O—NE+H= Total losses for the year
+—HFRENE included in other
B HAEfEEEHE comprehensive income for
RSN 2 58 assets held at 31 December
HagH 2019 (22,678) - -
RZO—NE+=ZH=
+—HRENE Total (losses)/gains for the year
E> HEEfEaEiE included in profit or loss for
RN (B5H8)zs assets held at 31 December
“EEE 2019 - (7,350) 16,888
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

HiE
Assets
FE LA FEE
PAASHEEREA su AR
Hofh 2w ERbEE fEELLAFEE
ZEREE Financial assets e ATEER 2
Financial assets mandatorily LRbEE
at fair value measured at Financial assets
through other fair value designated at fair
comprehensive through value through
income profit or loss profit or loss
BRI E
Financial
investments
IERE RS 7 A E B (EtEEEn
Equity securities and investment fund Debt securities
AT IT AT IT AT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
HW_O—/\E—H—H At 1 January 2018 932,974 198,598 -
e TRARERTRE Y Total losses recognised in
- Other comprehensive
- HremElis income (202,335) - -
- iEEiR - Profit or loss - (127,278) (41,138)
HAE =2 Transfer in to Level 3 - - 156,976
4EE Settlements - (15,773) (69,018)
HZO—/\HF
+—HA=+—H At 31 December 2018 730,639 55,547 46,320
AN O— )\ E+ZH= Total losses for the year
+—HFRAENE included in other
B HalEfEFEEHE comprehensive income for
M-S N 2 58 assets held at 31 December
HagH 2018 (202,335) - -
W_O— /) \FE+—H= Total losses for the year
+—HRENE included in profit or loss for
B HAEFEFEEE assets held at 31 December
IR B 2018 - (127.278) (39.543)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

LR #EAESEPNEREHME =89 The table below sets out information about significant unobservable
BN VTHEBEBREIENHE T E Y inputs used at year end in measuring financial instruments categorised
HAARNEZNE AEEEZR - as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
AHEEDN
BABIBH
AFRER
BEARARH BENSREE
BEN Fair value
A B measurement
fEERIS Significant TIRESEES sensitivity to
Valuation unobservable  #EE Weighted unobservable
techniques inputs Range average inputs
DLA P EESE Financial investments  #7& JE\ B 6.12%-14.53% 12.24% JE B S T I R
HAr 2w at fair value through &R & = (2018: 4.58%-14.17%)  (2018: 10.75%) M E A TR
2 ERE other comprehensive Discounted Risk-adjusted SIEUNEEHE
e i 25 25 Kz income: Equity cash flow discount rate OIS
HERE securities and Significant
investment fund increase in
risk-adjusted
discount rate
would result in a
lower fair value
S E TG 0.62-0.92 0.71 MRRNE R B
Wibrs P/B ratio (2018: 0.79-0.81) (2018: 0.81) 15 B EER
Market 7t
comparable Significant
approach increase in P/B
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

%7&% oy B 22 (5 3¢ B R g #f & B o] Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions to reasonably
YR T possibly alternatives
LRk T B AN ¥ BERETELTH The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances,
A B 7F§ et & 0 ZEFEEAREN®R measured using valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not
= 3 4 AH ]—J TEHMNEZEHETHS supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same
LHEE R NAZUAEE N instrument and are not based on observable market data. The following
BB REWE - TRINTELSEEHME L table shows the sensitivity of fair values to reasonable possible alternative
THE 10%F » A FEEHERESHEHA assumptions due to parallel movement of plus or minus 10% of the fair
TE RS T - value.
HtremEmls REs R E
Effect on other comprehensive income and
income statement
ARSE  FRE®  AAED A
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable = Unfavourable
—O—n —O— —O—N —O—N
2019 2019 2018 2018
BEETT BT AT T AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
HE Assets
Financial investments at fair
DU EESE A A2 value through other
EU S 2 SR E comprehensive income 70,796 (70,796) 73,064 (73,064)
Financial assets mandatorily
HHELVANHEESEAE measured at fair value
iR S RIEE through profit or loss 4,820 (4,820) 5,555 (5,555)
Financial assets designated at
WEEDAN T EESEAE fair value through profit or
R SRERE loss 1,686 (1,686) 4,682 (4,682)
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IHIERE A2 G - AT B R R

TR RIR

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.7 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting arrangements or similar agreements.

ERBEARILER REMBERFRH
RIS EMBERER TESHAIIERREEE
SR & FGE%E 2R Related amounts not set

Gross amounts EEEISEH  off in the statement of
EnEsE$ml  of recognised Net amounts of financial position
BRI financial financial
Gross liabilities assets IKELHYER S
amounts of set off in the presented in Eiiv gl
recognised statement  the statement £RITH Cash THEE
financial of financial of financial Financial collateral Net
assets position position instruments received amount
BT BT ARETIT BETT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O—hE 2019
Derivative
T SRIEE financial assets 538,750 - 538,750 (231,705) (154,478) 152,567
SR EMmEgE  Advances and other
I accounts 2,421,332 - 2,421,332 (7,395) - 2,413,937
—O—/\&FE 2018
Derivative
TSRS E financial assets 339,447 - 339,447 (265,511) (77,528) (3,592)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.7 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable

FL R - master netting arrangements or similar agreements.
TEMBIRE AEMBRRRS
EHNERSE  EMBRER SRR RS
SR EELE E$§M4$El  Related amounts not set
Gross amounts BfE/$%H  off in the statement of
ERESlEEh of recognised Net amounts of financial position
==t financial financial
Gross assets liabilities BRARNHS
amounts of set off in the presented in L
recognised statement  the statement SHTE Cash VRAE
financial of financial of financial Financial collateral Net
liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
BETIT AT Aot  ABETor BT B¥TT
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
—O—h&E 2019
Derivative
financial
TTESRAEE liabilities 357,195 - 357,195 (239,100) (77,885) 40,210
Repurchase
Efisaice agreements 19,829 - 19,829 (19,829) - -
—O—/\& 2018
Derivative
financial
TTESRASE liabilities 578,618 - 578,618 (265,511) (259,749) 53,358
Repurchase
Bk agreements 294,891 - 294,891 (294,891) - -
4.8 SRIEEER 4.8 Transfers of financial assets
UTFEAEBERFRTEKRIEWRGEZEE® 4 The transferred financial assets of the Group below that do not
BB E DR B B T A /F B & [0 W13 qualify for derecognition are debt securities held by counterparties
MM L EEE 5 - as collateral under sale and repurchase agreements.
__Emp THRRE(R = =R
HERAEE RRTEIME EEMRHAE RIHIE
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
—O— —O—n —O—N —O—N
2019 2019 2018 2018
HEETIT AT T BT AT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
Eljisapae=s Repurchase agreements 19,981 19,829 322,808 294,891
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5 Interest income

—O—n —O—N
2019 2018
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Balances and placements with and

EIZEFER & loans and advances to banks 2,141,913 2,499,635

BB Debt securities
- EHAH - listed 707,685 717,588
- JEEHAHE - unlisted 825,426 491,427
B EEK Advances to customers 5,994,885 5,299,473
HAth Others 404,670 441,376
10,074,579 9,449,499

BIEEFEUA N EHE A
FI R~ 4 ph & E 2 Fl B A
7,508,000,000 TT(Z=O—/\4F : ki
7,093,135,000 7C) ~ LA EEZE AR
il T UL g5 2 e A E 2 FLE A
Heig 2,019,747,000 TE(=O— J\4E ¢
AW 1,728,951,000 TT) Kk E & EST
g [E 7] B UL A %S 25,635,000 IT
(ZO— /U« ¥ 12,272,000 7T) -

6 FIEH

Included in interest income are interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
of HK$7,508,000,000 (2018: HK$7,093,135,000), interest income from financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income of HK$2,019,747,000 (2018:
HK$1,728,951,000) and unwinding of discount on impaired assets of HK$25,635,000

(2018: HK$12,272,000).

6 Interest expense

—O—n —O—N

2019 2018

HETIT AT

HKS$’000 HK$’000

Deposits and balances from banks and

EEZEGrES=r =21 deposits from customers 4,144,528 3,969,057
BT IFERES Certificates of deposit issued 187,545 142,119
BT EEIE Subordinated debts issued 117,920 138,514
HEaE Lease liabilities 8,902 -
Hfth Others 395,453 434,668
4,854,348 4,684,358

BREEEF R L N AR DA E
B AHGRZ SEE 2 FE L
Wl 4,468,251,000 71 (= O— /4
4E  HsE 4.290,260,000 TT)

Included in interest expense is interest expense on financial liabilities that are not at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$4,468,251,000 (2018: HK$4,290,260,000).
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7 IRBE MRHEFWA 7 Net fees and commission income

—O—h —O—N
2019 2018
BT AT IT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
P8 S AU A Fees and commission income
Securities brokerage and investment
FERARA B S services 399,373 468,622
EHRER Credit cards 140,021 143,862
BHRIEEEB 2RSS RS Credit related fees and commission 287,294 222,657
E o s Trade finance 117,723 106,134
Ht B EIRITES Other retail banking services 36,601 22,531
HA AR BN Other fee income 94,391 77,482
1,075,403 1,041,288
ISt =954 i oe-dan) Fees and commission expenses
B Credit cards (112,954) (113,462)
Securities brokerage and investment
e o AR AL A E AR services (47,978) (58,052)
LA AR S S Y Other fee expenses (45,405) (35,365)
(206,337) (206,879)
IR 7% S e F U A Net fees and commission income 869,066 834,409
Hrpr: Of which:
Net fees and commission income, other than
amounts included in determining the
HIELIA B EESEAERIE 2 € effective interest rate, arising from
A E A ERTE 4 2 RIS E financial assets or financial liabilities
KB A CRERERETE that are not at fair value through profit or
HIEFR 2 474H) loss
- MR E R ARSI A - fees and commission income 427,300 352,661
- IEE S H - fees and commission expenses (112,982) (104,508)
Net fees and commission income on trust
REEREZEFHAIRE T and other fiduciary activities where the
EEHEHAMZ ST EA R Group holds or invests on behalf of its
& S FULA customers
- R E R AEsWA - fees and commission income 26,807 24,489
- REsE e - fees and commission expenses (3,487) (4,078)
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8 IRl AMREREXREMH 8 Insurance operating income and charge for insurance claims

—O—h —O—N
2019 2018
AT IT AT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
REBEZERA Insurance operating income
4EEE Gross
R IREAEER Gross insurance premium written 676,543 606,981
AR A (2 D Change in unearned premium provision (43,804) (32,701)
Premium revenue arising from insurance
OB (T 2 R IR E L 7 fREULA contracts issued 632,739 574,280
R Reinsurance
T R Reinsurance premium outward (118,220) (108,259)
PR e > O Change in unearned premium provision 5,960 5,547
ERT RS SN (FBEU AEYERE  Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers
YN ari